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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRBES

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the Group's consolidated financial results for
the 2021 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group's strategy and business
outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The year began with unprecedented challenge which affected the whole world.
The 2019 novel coronavirus disease ("COVID-19") has transformed the customers
preference for types of clothing which in turn change the demand for types of fabrics,
as a result demand for fabrics for lingerie and inner wear items declined (which
traditionally took larger portion of our products) while the demand for fabrics for
sportswear increased. It calls for more efforts in R&D to develop new products to
meet customers need. The pandemic also led to increase of cost of yarns resulting
from disruption of production and logistics in certain countries where our suppliers
located. Despite these challenges, the management team of Pacific Textiles has
proactively adopted different measures to ensure that the business operates as usual
and with stable profit.

Through our relentless effort on innovation by putting resources in research and
development, our customer base expands as confidence from potential customers
develop. This partly offset the drop in profit margin caused by increased cost and
temporarily decrease in demand from certain existing customers. The Group remains
positive on the long-term development and believe that the impact of COVID-19 will
subside in not too distant future.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

We have been making progress of the establishing a new textile mill in Nam Dinh
Province, Vietnam, which could produce 3 million pounds of fabrics per month by
adopting highly efficient production techniques. With the technical assistance and
advices from Toray, this new factory will also adopt high level of environmental
protection standard to achieve the target of lowest feasible emission.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our
customers, business partners, suppliers, stakeholders and bankers for their continuous
support to the Group during the period, | sincerely hope our employees will be able
to grow together with the Group, enjoy balanced life, and realize their potential in the
Group.

I' would also thank our shareholders for their continuous support and confidence in
the Group during the past year.

On behalf of the Board
WAN Wai Loi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE WA D

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of textiles products, including high quality cotton and
synthetic knitted fabrics.

Revenue

During the year under review, revenue of the Group was approximately HKS$5,384.9
million (2020: approximately HK$5,476.2 million) representing a decrease of 1.7% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2020, due to impact of COVID-19.

Revenue generated from sales of goods from different geographical locations (as
determined by where the products were delivered to) is set out in note 5 to the
financial statements of the Company on page 103.

Other incomes comprising, among others, sales of scrap materials and government

grants are set out in note 22 to the financial statements of the Company on page 138.

There was an one-off other gain of approximately HK$100.5 million arising from
disposal of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in HK during the
year under review. Details of disposal are set out in note 22 to the financial statement
of the Company on page 138.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$4,523.2 million (2020: HK$4,551.6
million) representing a decrease of 0.6% as compared with the year ended 31 March
2020 due to decrease in revenue.

Profit

During the year under review, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was HK$721.5 million (2020: approximately HK$743.5 million) representing a decrease
of 3.0% as compared with last year because of the drop in sales revenue.

Selling and distribution expenses
During the year under review, selling and distribution expenses including impairment
loss on trade receivables increased to HK$86.3 million (2020: HK$61.8 million).

Administration expenses
The administration expenses slightly decreased to HK$179.7 million (2020: HK$189.9
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WA

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 27.4% to HK$14.6 million (2020: HKS11.4
million) mainly due to increase in net exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables and trade payables turnover days
Trade receivables turnover days was 54 days while trade payables turnover days was
55 days.

Income tax

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately HK$103.0 million during
the year under review (2020: HK$103.0 million). The average effective tax rate of the
Group was 12.3% which was slightly higher than last year (2020: 11.8%).

Assets

As at 31 March 2021, the total assets of the Group were HKS$5,211.4 million (2020:
HK$4,813.2 million) representing an increase of 8.3%. The total assets comprised non-
current assets of HK$2,068.7 million (2020: HK$1,912.4 million) and current assets of
HKS$3,142.7 million (2020: HK$2,900.8 million). Such increase was a result of increase in
trade and bills receivables, and cash and bank balances.

Key financial ratios are set out below:

Gross Profit Margin® ES U
Return on Equity® BEZE Bl ZRERO

Interest Coverage Ratio® FEBELL RO

Notes:

(1) The calculation of Gross Profit Margin is based on gross profit divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

(2) The calculation of Return on Equity is based on profit for the year divided by total
equity and multiplied by 100%.

(3) The calculation of Interest Coverage Ratio is based on profit before interest expenses
on bank loans and tax expenses divided by interest expenses on bank loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFRES T

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Liquidity and financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2021, the Group was in a net cash position of HK$186.7 million (2020:
HKS$66.5 million).

The Group's principal source of working capital was cash generated from sales of its
products, supplemented with bank borrowings and a shareholder’s loan contributed
by our joint venture partner for the Vietnam subsidiary.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HK$957.5 million
(2020: HK$928.8 million) comprising of HK$144.7 million, the equivalent of HK$700.2
million denominated in US$, the equivalent of HK$108.3 million denominated in RMB,
the equivalent of HK$3.5 million denominated in VND and the equivalent of HK$0.8
million denominated in other currencies. The cash and bank balances and time
deposits were to finance the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HK$645.4 million (2020: HK$737.2 million) and
shareholder’s loan of HK$125.4 million (2020: HK$125.0 million) contributed by our
joint venture partner to the Vietnam subsidiary. The said shareholder’s loan was of
equity nature and was not repayable within one year. The Group did not pledge any of
its assets for bank borrowing (2020: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s total assets amounted to HK$5,211.4
million (2020: HK$4,813.2 million) representing an increase of 8.3%. Non-current assets
and current assets were HK$2,068.7 million and HKS$3,142.7 million respectively. The
above assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$1,624.7 million, non-current
liabilities of HK$233.1 million and equity attributable to Shareholders of HK$3,337.9

million.

Capital expenditure and capital commitment

The Group had been adopting cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital
expenditure in response to the market demand. During the year under review, total
capital expenditure increased by 32.4% to HK$202.3 million (2020: HK$152.8 million)
which was mainly due to the acquisition of land for the project of new factory in

Vietnam.

Details on the right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment are set out on pages
106 to 109 of this annual report.

Details of capital commitments are set out in note 31 to the financial statements of
the Company on page 150 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WA

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)
Key liquidity or leverage ratios:

Current Ratio® BN R @
Quick Ratio® BN RO
Gearing Ratio® BARAEL RO

Debt to Equity Ratio?” BEERLL R

Notes:
(4) The calculation of Current Ratio is based on current assets divided by current liabilities.

(5) The calculation of Quick Ratio is based on current assets minus inventories divided by
current liabilities.

(6) The calculation of Gearing Ratio is based on total borrowings and bills payable divided
by total equity multiplied by 100%.

(7) The calculation of Debt to Equity Ratio is based on total liabilities divided by total
equity multiplied by 100%.

Risk Management on Foreign Exchange and Interest Exposure

The Group had been exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures with respect to the US Dollars, Renminbi and Vietnamese Dongs primarily.
The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposures. The Group would hedge against certain of
its exposures in order to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong, PRC, Macau and Vietnam. Except for certain
cash and bank balances and certain inter-company receivables denominated in
foreign currencies, transactions were generally conducted in a functional currency of
the respective group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities was considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group had been using forward foreign currency contracts to hedge part of its
foreign exchange risk. These forward foreign currency contracts did not qualify for

hedge accounting and were accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

Lease Commitments

Details of the lease commitments are set out on page 150 of this annual report.

Pledge of Assets
No assets were pledged to obtain financing as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFRES T

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Segmental Information

Details of segmental information are set out in note 5 to the annual financial
information.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

Events Subsequent to the Period
There was no significant event undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31
March 2021 and up to the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL REPORTING

The Group has been sparing no effort in the investment of environmental protection,
energy consumption and reduction of wastage, and the achievements were well
recognized. During the year under review, the Company's subsidiary in Panyu had
received the following awards:

The project of “Study on Carbon Emissions and Emission Reduction Pathways of
Typical Textiles” was awarded the Third Class Award of “Measurement Control and
Instrumentation Science and Technology Award of Guangdong Province” jointly
by the Measurement Control Technology and Equipment Application Promotion
Association of Guangdong Province ("GDMCPA") and Guangdong Society for
Measurement (“GDSM") in July 2020%.

The technology of “Heather Effect Dyeing Process on Polyester/Modified Polyester by
One Bath Method” was included in the recommended catalogues of the 14th batch
advanced technologies in energy saving and emission reduction in China's dyeing and
printing industry in October 2020

The project of “Key Technologies and Application of Optimal Operation of Printing
and Dyeing Wastewater Treatment and Cloud Management” was awarded the Second
Class Award of scientific and technological progress by China National Textile &
Apparel Council ("CNTAC") in November 2020*.

The project of “20000t/d Phase 5 Wastewater Treatment” was awarded the 2020
Outstanding Demonstration Project regarding Environmental Protection of
Guangdong Province by the Guangdong Association of Environmental Protection
Industry ("GDAEP!I") in February 2021%,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB WA

10

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year under review, the Company contributed to develop innovative
products to meet the market needs. The Company has received multiple awards for its
new products including:

An ECO-peach skin velvet fabric with anti-microbial function was awarded the
certificate of “China Functional Knitted Products Fashion Trends 2020/2021 -
Recommendation on Scientific and Technological Innovative Product” by China
Knitting Industrial Association (“CKIA") in September 2020".

A rhomb jacquard warp knit fabric with dual colour was awarded the certificate of
“China Functional Knitted Products Fashion Trends 2020/2021 — Recommendation
on Comfortable Product Unit” by China Knitting Industrial Association (“CKIA") in
September 2020%

The project of R&D and industrialization on ECO-peach skin velvet fabric with
anti-microbial function was awarded “Innovation Contribution Award of Knitted
Underwear” by China National Textile & Apparel Council (“CNTAC") in November
2020%

The Group's Panyu subsidiary was awarded “the Product Development Contribution
Award” by China National Textile & Apparel Council ("CNTAC") in December 2020",

Seven products were included in the “List of 2020 Guangzhou Demonstration Projects
of Green Manufacturing System Construction — Green Design Products” by the
Guangzhou Municipal Industry and Information Technology Bureau in January 20217

The Group’s Panyu subsidiary was awarded the certificate of “Fabrics China Appraisal
Entry Enterprise — Outstanding Products (Leisure Shirt Fabric)” by China Textile
Information Center and Textile Product Development Center in March 20217,

*  The English translation is for reference only. If there is any inconsistency between the
Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 4,933 full-time employees (2020: 5,197).
There was no significant change in the Group's remuneration policy. The Group’s
remuneration package for its employees included salary, bonuses, allowances
and retirement benefits based on the performance, skills and knowledge of each
employee. The Group also provided additional benefits to its employees, for instances
subsidized accommodation and meals for those working in production facilities,
accident and medical insurance, etc.

The Group will continue to provide regular trainings and competitive remuneration
package to the employees in order to enhance their incentive and motivation to work.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK22 cents (2020: HK18 cents) per
share for the 2021 Financial Year, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. Together with an interim dividend of HK22 cents (2020: HK26
cents) per share, the total dividend for the 2021 Financial Year amounted to HK44
cents (2020: HK44 cents) per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEFRES T

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The 2021 Financial Year was an extraordinary year for textiles business. The sales
volume of the Group in first half financial year was seriously affected by COVID-19
resulting from shrinking consumption level for garments, but the sales volume for
certain markets has steadily resumed after the effect of economic stimulus measures
of various government kicked in. Nevertheless, the trend of pandemic of COVID-19 has
been unpredictable, while it seems to have subsided in certain countries, it rages in
other regions. At the time of this reports, it still affects one of our major market, Japan,
and the adverse effect on sales may emerge in the next few months.

As to the cost of production, the tension of trade relationship between China and the
USA, combined with the widespread outbreak of pandemic in India from the fourth
quarter, as well as the shortage of suitable cotton yarn, have led to the spiking of
material costs. In addition, the appreciation in RMB and potential interest rate hike,
overall operation cost may further escalate in future. It may take some time to absorb
the cost through sales price adjustments to overcome the impact of rising costs. The
high cost situation will continue in the next few months, the Group believes that the

raw material cost will stabilize when the COVID-19 situation subsides.

The Group has constantly increased its efficiency to strengthen its position to
overcome the change of global economic situation. The Group has realized an
approximately HK$100 million by disposal of two underutilized industrial premises
in Hong Kong to release the value of the properties. Meanwhile, the Group has also
adopted other cost reduction initiatives to ensure that the Group always operate in
highly efficient way under disciplined budget.

Meanwhile, our efforts of expanding business in fabrics designated for leisure clothing
and sportswear has been paid off. The Group is pleased with the trend of rising
numbers of new customers from both mainland China and overseas, especially, in
leisure clothing and sports outfit sector. The widening of customer base would enable
the Group to be more resistant to the business fluctuation arising from economic
downturn in certain regions. We are optimistic on the growth of PRC domestic
markets. The Group is also looking forward to expanding its production base to cater
for future customers demand for our quality fabrics.

The medium to long term plan of the Company is to expand our production scale to
cater for future needs. Under our plan for the expanding investment in Vietnam the
construction of the new factory in Nam Dinh provinces in Vietnam is expected to be
completed in the second half of 2023.

Looking forward, while the Group is expanding, the Group will keep on pursuing
its sustainability strategy in order to contribute towards reduction of GHG gas, an
universal target on protecting our planet.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 71, co-founded the Group in 1997 and has been appointed
as a Director of the Company since 2004. He is currently an executive Director,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Moreover, he is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group and a non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc.,
an associated company of the Group, whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange in Sri Lanka. He is responsible for leading the management team to oversee
the overall production and operation of the Group, providing corporate directions
and formulating business strategies of the Group. Mr. Wan obtains a Bachelor of
Science Degree in Chemical Engineering from National Cheng Kung University in
Taiwan. He has over 50 years of experience in the textiles industry.

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI, aged 63, joined the Group on 1 July 2019 as executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board. Moreover, he is a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Okutomi is responsible for assisting the Chairman to
supervise the company’s operations, leading the Group’s CSR and ESG planning and
execution. Mr. Okutomi holds a bachelor's degree in law from Hitotsubashi University
in 1981 and after his graduation, he joined the merchandise sales department
(textiles) of Toray. Toray is a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and is a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He has been the managing director of Toray
Industries (South China) Co., Ltd. and Toray Industries (H.K.) Ltd. from May 2016 to 30
June 2019, and the deputy managing director of Toray Industries (China) Co., Ltd. from
May 2016 to 30 June 2019. Mr. Okutomi has extensive experience in management of
textiles business.

Mr. TOU Kit Vai, aged 58, joined the Group in 2013 and became Chief Financial
Officer on 1 April 2014. Mr. Tou has been appointed as an executive Director from 1
July 2017. Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries of the Group and a non-
executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc., an associated company of the Group, whose
shares are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka. Mr. Tou has extensive
experience in factory operations, financial management, project management and
ERP system. He is responsible for overseeing the corporate financial management,
information technology and back office operations. Mr. Tou is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He was an executive director of a company listed on the Stock
Exchange during the period from 2007 to 2012.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. Toshiya ISHII, aged 58, joined the Group in 2017 as an executive Director.
Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ishii is responsible
for the Group's budgetary control and setting up of key performance indicators for
fulfilling corporate goal and targets. Mr. Ishii is leading the project of setting up a new
factory in Vietnam. Mr. Ishii graduated from Keio University in 1985 and has been an
employee of Toray since 1985. Toray is a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
and is a substantial shareholder of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, he was a
general manager of controller's department of Toray and he has extensive experience
in the textiles industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 73, joined the Group in 1997 and became a non-executive
director in 2007. He has been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed
as the Vice Chairman of the Group from 1 July 2017. From 1 June 2019, Mr. Lau has
been re-designated as non-executive Director of the Company and ceased to act as
the Vice Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Technical
College). He has over 44 years of experience in the textiles industry, and he was the
Chairman of Group 3 (Dyeing and Finishing) of Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 69, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2007. He was the former chairman and
is currently the non-executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in
planning and management. Dr. Chan has also been an independent non-executive
director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International)
Limited since 2010, Modern Dental Group Limited since 2015 and Human Health
Holdings Limited since 2016, and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited since 2007, the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree in City
Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree
in Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. He is currently the adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. Dr. Chan was the former
chairman of Business Enterprise Management Centre of The Hong Kong Management
Association and was also a member of the advisory committee of the department of
management and marketing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

EXHHBERERLA |

BITEE(E)

AHBRMELE 5858 R 2017 FMALREE
HERNITES - LI BALREEZHNE
REIZESZ - AHEEBEARAEE  YBE
HESIMEIEZEERIESNEXNTEE
B AREERTFFENBmREERTRED
BH GHAEERI1SFEENEERDRKR
2. 30 81985 F R HE R Toray © Toray /& —
FREREFAERGALMOARE - MAERR
AlZ—BEZWRE - MAREEZA] - BE
Toray #BEEE0PIARATIE M EHE B L=

FHTES

BIBEKE - 7350 R1997 FIMALRER
WA 2007 FRRAIERITTES - HHEH 2017
F7AVRAREATANTESTREZTA
NEBBEFE - B2019F6 18 - B4k
ERFAEARRNATFERTES BTHLEHE
EERAETE -BEERBRAEEAETIAE
(AIBESILESR) BRZABITER R
BoWESHBERER44FER  CAEE
TERASEINHCLBREE)NERE -

BIFGTES

BR¥KEEL - 695% - B 2007 FREZE AR
REVEMNIERITES - FR 1984 FMAEH
EHATAREEEER AT - EEZ AT
TEREAERTEST  RNEREREET
EFHEBEEEELS: - RELE 1993 F 8 H
TEXEEERARZBIYIFNITES A
2000 AR IGBRE (R BRAF
ZEBNIEHITES  H2015F K 2016 FHESE
BEABRRTINEBRBRAARAREERS
EBRARZBMYIFMITES K H 2007 Fi#e
HEREERERARZIENITES - Lilt
REIRB R ERLET -BRETHENE
X2 B FEE K2 (University of Manitoba) 3 2
B4 8 Mg mRSE TS PERKET
HEBELEBHIT BN REEERARNS I RE
PTEoRes - BRI ABERERS HSEM R
EETMHKEGREBXF RELLEEES
EREERELEEBRRPLER Y
KERBBIABEERME2ABEMEZE
gKE -

2020 /2021 %

13



PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREHEEAREN

14

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 72, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Ng has over 34 years of senior management
experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng was a director and a member
of the executive committee for Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited,
a Thailand listed company. He was an independent director of China Digital TV
Holding Co. Ltd., a New York Stock Exchange listed company and a non-executive
director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He was
the chief executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief executive
officer of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng was the
Honorary Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong. Mr. Ng was a
member of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC) and a appointed
member of Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established
under the Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and
Administration.

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 64, has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Sze has senior management
experience in the private and investment banking industry serving high net worth
clients and institutions. Mr. Sze is an independent non-executive director of Wecon
Holdings Limited since 27 February 2019, which a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. He was the managing director, head of China and Hong Kong
of Julius Baer Bank; the chief executive officer of EFG Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing director, head of investment of
Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief executive officer of Asia-
Pacific for Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division at
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from the
University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHAN Sau Yee, is the Company Secretary. Ms. Chan is a fellow member of
Chartered Governance Institute (ICSA) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (HKICS) respectively. She has obtained dual qualifications as Chartered
Governance Professional and Chartered Secretary from ICSA and HKICS. She has also
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from the University of Hong Kong. She also holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the
University of London. Ms. Chan has ample corporate secretarial experience gained
from international law firms, listed companies and large private groups. Ms. Chan
joined the Company in November 2017.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GAO Jinhua, aged 55, is the Chief Operating Officer (Vietnam) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who has worked for the Group for more
than 20 years and is experienced in operational and production management. Prior
to taking up the current position, Mr. Gao has been the General Manager of the
Production Department. Mr. Gao graduated from the Shanghai Normal University,
major in Chemistry in 1988.

Mr. ZHAO Qizhi, aged 55, is the Chief Operating Officer (PRC) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1997 and has
over 25 years of experience in the textiles industry. He is responsible for managing
the engineering department of the factories. Mr. Zhao holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong University, China.

Mr. LAI Chi Man, aged 55, is the Chief Marketing Officer and a director of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1998 and has over 25 years of
experience in the textiles industry. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Textile
and Clothing Marketing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree (The Kellogg — HKUST EMBA Program)
awarded by Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology jointly.

Mr. TSANG Sian Chung, Hubert, aged 44, is the Chief Information Officer and a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in 2010 and now
leads the Group’s digitalization initiatives. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience
in the IT field, ranging from performing academic research on high performance
computing to building large scale Internet websites to building and maintaining
enterprise shared services. Mr. Tsang holds an MBA degree and Bachelor of Computer
Science, both from the University of Maryland, College Park.

Mr. Mitsuru KAWABATA, aged 61, is the General Manager (HR & Administration)
who joined the Group in 2020. Mr. Kawabata holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from
Doshisha University. Upon his graduation from Doshisha University, Mr. Kawabata
joined Toray in 1984. He has extensive business development experiences in fibres,
fabrics, and garment as well as general management experience. Prior to joining the
Group, he was the managing director of Toray Ultrasuede Marketing, Inc. a subsidiary
of Toray.

Mr. Masanari MURAKAMI, aged 52, is the General Manager (Marketing) who joined
the Group in 2021. Upon his graduation from Faculty of Law, Kobe University in 1991,
Mr Murakami joined Toray. Mr Murakami has worked as a knit textile salesman over 15
years in Japan and Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, he was a director of Toray
Industries (H.K,) Ltd. and was responsible for textiles business and garment business.

Mr. Hiroyuki MATSUDA, aged 54, is the General Manager (Engineering) who
joined the Group in 2020. Mr. Matsuda is responsible for managing the engineering
department of the factories in China. Mr. Matsuda holds a Master Degree from
Graduate School of Letters of Kansai University, Japan. Prior to joining the Group,
he was a manager of Toray Industries, Inc. and has extensive experience in the
management of machinery, plant and equipment of factories.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr. CHUNG Chi Shing, aged 57, is the Assistant General Manager (Production
Technology) and a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group
in 1998 and has been serving for 23 years. He is responsible for dyeing and finishing
technology, fabric development, procurement of yarns, dyes and chemicals (DCA). Mr.
Chung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Textile Chemistry,
with over 30 years of experience in textiles industry. He is a holder of Chartered

Colourist granted by the Society of Dyers and Colourists.

Mr. WANG Sijie, aged 50, is the Assistant General Manager (Dyeing and Finishing)
and a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in 1997. Mr.
Wang is responsible for the management of dyeing and finishing factory. Mr. Wang is
a professorate senior engineer and a holder of master degree. He is the Vice President
of Guangzhou Textile Engineering Society and a member of expert and technical
committee of China Knitting Industry Association (B4 4 T2 @B ERLKH
Bt T HEERFIITEEEZE E). Mr. Wang was awarded as outstanding chief
engineer by China Knitting Industries Association and technical innovation award by
China Textile Engineering Society.

Mr. Masanobu SATO, aged 48, is the Assistant General Manager (Innovative
Merchandise Development) and he joined the Group as Assistant General Manager
(Research and Development) in 2017. Mr. Sato has over 20 years of experience in
textiles and related production technique development. Mr. Sato has studied material
engineering in Tokyo Metropolitan University. Upon his graduation, he joined Toray.
Prior to joining the Company, he has been working in different factory and laboratory
in Japan and China, such as Taltex (Zhuhai) Ltd. and Toray Fiber Research Center
(China).

Mr. LAU Tak Ho Kevin, aged 47, is the Assistant General Manager (Finance, Human
Resources Management & Administration) who joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Lau is
mainly responsible for group finance, human resources, administration, procurement
management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Lau graduated with Eng (Hons.)
and MBA degree in Development & Industrialisation from the University of Liverpool
in the United Kingdom and a Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting
from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of Institute of Public
Accountants in Australia. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked in an international
accounting firm and various listed companies. He has extensive working experiences
in finance, cost control, human resources & administration and procurement

management.

Mr. CHAN Kam Yuen, aged 53, is the Assistant General Manager (Sales) who joined
the Group in 1998 and has been serving for 23 years. Mr. Chan graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry, with
over 30 years of experience in textiles industry.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EER%BE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the 2021 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textiles products,
including high quality cotton and synthetic knitted fabrics.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2021 Financial Year by
geographical locations of business operations is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group during the year and discussions on its future developments are
provided in the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis”in this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, business and prospects might
be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The followings were the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group for the 2021 Financial Year. There might
be other risks and/or uncertainties in addition to those outlined below which were
unknown to the Group or which might not be material during the period under review
but will turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The macro-economic and political factors, such as potential trade barriers between
China and United States of America and the economic effect of COVID-19, posed
uncertainty to the business of the Group. Slowing down of global economic growth,
risk of stagflation and unstable foreign exchange rate and interest rate were also the
factors that adversely affected the financial performance of the Group.

Strategic Direction Risk

The success of future business depends on the achievement of our strategic
objectives including but not limited to acquisitions, joint ventures, disposals and/or
restructurings. The Group faced risk in its application of assets and capital towards
potential investments when business and investment opportunities had arisen.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal risk might be constituted due to unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or
unfavourable judgements which disrupted or negatively affected the business
operations or financial conditions of the Group.

Failing to oblige by relevant applicable laws and regulations might constitute
compliance risk. The Group might suffer from financial losses or losses in reputation
due to any possible legal risk or regulatory sanctions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Policy risk

The change in governmental policies and regulations in the countries in which the
Group operated, such as amended environmental protection policies, might result
in adjustment to production method or increase in cost in fulfilling those statutory
standards.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2021 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 56 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK22 cents (2020: HK26 cents) per Share was paid on 16
December 2020 to the Shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK22 cents (2020: HK18 cents) per Share. Subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK22 cents will be
paid on 2 September 2021 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 23 August 2021.

The Board intends to maintain long term return for shareholders. In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into consideration of various factors, such as the financial results of the
operation, general financial condition of the Group, future funding requirements on
capital, business operations and development, general market conditions, interest
of shareholders as a whole, legal requirements, and other conditions that the Board
deems relevant.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 9 August 2021 to
12 August 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending the forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 6 August 2021. The record date which determines the Shareholder’s voting right is
scheduled on 9 August 2021.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Cont’d)

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 19 August 2021 to
23 August 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 18 August 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2021
Financial Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2021 Financial Year are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,145 million (2020: HK$2,319 million) comprising share premium,
share-based reserve, retained earnings, and offsetting the treasure shares of the
Company.

Under the Companies Law (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are
also available for distribution to the Shareholders provided that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the 2021 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$1,697,000 (2020: HK$2,090,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Expenditure of approximately HK$202 million (2020: HK$153 million) was incurred
during 2021 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(Cont'd)
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

of the Group are set out in note 6 and 7 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2021 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2020: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company repurchased a total of 2,124,000
Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of (excluding expenses)
HK$7,707,010. Such repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled on 17 April
2020. The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value thereof.
Details of the repurchases of shares were as follows:
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The repurchase of shares was made by the Directors, pursuant to the general mandate
granted by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 8 August 2019
with a view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value
per share and earnings per share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2021 and up to the date of report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2021 Financial Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 70.7% of the Group’s total sales and sales to the Group's largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 39.3%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 47.5% of the Group's total
purchases and purchase from the Group's largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 27.4%.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report

2,124,000 3.70

3.50 7,707,010

BERGOTHESFRBERER2019F8A8
ARTRRBERE LRE 2 —BEEE
T NEREERAREREEFEARERE
FImERRESE -

bR EXHFTREIN  REZE2021F3A31 81
FEAREEAREBAE  ARASKETM
WBARBEBE BEREERARZE
fo] |- TH 752

ITERFRRER

P22 FEMHREE  MASERLAEFPIE
B2 HEMAEEBEREN707%  ME
FRASBESEAEPEL ZHEEEFLD
393% c MAKE A KHEREL 2 &REBG
NEBERBEREN475% MEDARNEE
BRAHEEEL 2 REGERL274% o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERRE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Cont'd)

Except as disclosed below, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors had owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued Shares) had any interests in the Group'’s five largest
customers or suppliers noted above:

Toray, a substantial shareholder of the Company, accounted for approximately 3.8%
of the Group's total purchases. The purchase from Toray constituted continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 158 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors during the 2021 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Toshiya ISHII

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. WAN Wai Loi, Mr. Toshiya ISHII and Mr. LAU Yiu Tong will retire by
rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and will, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years, renewable thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving at least six months’ prior notice to another party in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors had
been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable thereafter.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Cont'd)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM had a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of each Director’s experience, responsibility and the time
commitment to the business of the Group.

Details of emoluments of every Director for the 2021 Financial Year are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement, or contract of significance in relation to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his or her connected entity had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during or at the end of the 2021 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which
caused or might cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interest which any such person had or might had with the Group
during the year under review.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors were not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2021 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION BEFRERY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be entitled to be RIFAAHBERME)  SESHERBITES
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he ~ S E BB R T EE S B — 1))
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise ~ BRER Y EHESARRINEEER
in relation thereto. E

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND ESRRONBBRO CERRAKE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief R 202138318 AR A EER R S1T
executives (Note 1) of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures — EA 8 (M 5E 1) R Q &) g & I (a] R 8 4
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (Note 1) as recorded in the  (BizE1) 2 B&fn ~ MEERM MESFR - #HA
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to ~ HRIEFEHF NP EKRHIEI2EETFHEELE

the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows: ATk BRI g AN QR KRB AP 2
e RABIT
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES BRGZFR

Wan Wai Loi 10,295,000 1,030,000 - - 11,325,000 0.80%
FER (Note 2)
(B32)

Tou Kit Vai 707,000 - - - 707,000 0.05%
HER
Lau Yiu Tong 53,393,000 - - - 53,393,000 3.78%
fgz
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel 650,000 - - - 650,000 0.05%
Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert 450,000 - - - 450,000 0.03%
&+ (Note 3)

(Hf3E3)
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. Within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

2. The Shares are held by Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

3. Mr. Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert is the Chief Information Officer of the Company who was
granted share options of the Company. A summary of Share Option Scheme is set out
on pages 26 to 29 of this annual report.

4. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on
the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the Directors/Chief
Executives.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year under review were the rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS FEREREMATRRONABER G

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES ZEHERAR
As at 31 March 2021, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive ~ R 2021F3A31H U NTALT (AR AES

of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of Bk E =TT A BER M) RA R A% 15 sk 4878
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the IR 13 R BB RIE B 5 K HI G 160 55 336 (578

SFO were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

THREZECMALE I BEIRARNT

B ZFE

Toray Beneficial Owner 405,394,000 (L) 28.03%
BEmEAA
Schroders Plc Investment Manager 127,258,000 (L) 9.02%
wEKIE
Lam Wing Tak Beneficial Owner 14,566,000 (L)
megE BERBEAA
Interest of Spouse 718,000 (L)
fe B 5
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000(L)
2REFEZAIMA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(B 7 5)
Wong Bik Ha Beneficial Owner 718,000 (L)
BHEE ExfEAA
Interest of Spouse 14,566,000 (L)
[N p s
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000(L)
2REEFEZAIMA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(B3ES)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

5. Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the spouse of Ms. Wong Bik Ha, vice versa. For the purpose of the
SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the family trust.

6. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on
the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the respective
Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, the
Company adopted the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions
therein.

Options enabling the exercise of 22,820,000 Shares were granted on 18 July 2007
("1st Grant”) and expired on 17 July 2017. Options enabling the exercise of 10,000,000
Shares were granted on 11 October 2013 (“2nd Grant”) will expire on 10 October 2023.
The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before the dates of the 1st
Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with
a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants (as defined in
paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any eligible participants, namely an
employee, Director or Non-executive Director (including INED) of any Member
of the Group.

"Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated
companies of the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the
Share Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
3. Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”"),
representing 143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue at the date of grant of the options.

. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a) General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be

more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the
Listing Date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
6. Exercise price and payment on grant

(a)

b)

Exercise price

The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder
which shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Payment on grant

Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option
granted to them.

7. Life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme was terminated automatically at midnight on the

day immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date, in other

words, the Share Option Scheme was terminated as at 17 May 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

The share options issued under 1st Grant were fully exercised. The movement of
2nd Grant as at 31 March 2021 was as follows:

BREE (E)

B. ARTFCHEZHERE
FoREHEBETHEREDEREITE -
M2021E38318  F_RBENEEF
IR -

1171072013 EligibleEmployees  HKS998 10000000 1t 11/10/2016 30% 3000000 11/10/2016-
BEBES 998 BT E-4 10/10/203

nd 11102019 3% 3500000 11/10/2019-

g4 10/10/203

3d 117102022 3% 3500000 11/10/2022-

£ 10102023

The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of
HK$1.85 per Share on the basis of binomial model (the "Model”). The significant
inputs into the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the
date of grant of HK$9.98 per Share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately
2.09%, an expected option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of 45%
and annual dividend yield of 9%. HK$584,000 amortised fair value of share options
for the 2021 Financial Year was charged to the consolidated income statement
(2020: HK$1,174,000).

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and
because change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the
fair value of the share options.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules.

During the 2021 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which were subject to reporting, and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the independent shareholders’approval requirement under Chapter
14A.33 of the Listing Rules:

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP

During the 2021 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 29 March 2018 in relation to the sale and purchase of knitted
fabric manufactured and owned by the Group to Crystal International Group
Limited (“Crystal”together with its subsidiaries, referred to as “Crystal Group”) with
its term up to 31 March 2021 (“Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric
New Master Agreement”). The annual cap for each of the three years ended 31
March 2019, ending 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 shall be HK$2,000 million.
Details of the Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric New Master
Agreement were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2018.

During the 2021 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Crystal
Group and the Group was approximately HK$994 million which was within the

relevant annual cap.

According to the Listing Rules, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT Limited, an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Crystal is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of a subsidiary of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Crystal Group
is therefore also regarded as connected person of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(2) SALE OF YARNS BY TORAY TO THE GROUP

During the 2021 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 28 July 2017 in relation to sale of yarns by manufactured or
owned by Toray Industries, Inc. (“Toray’, together with its subsidiaries, “Toray
Group”) to the Group for a period ending 31 March 2020. The original term of the
agreement has expired on 31 March 2020 and the agreement has been renewed
for a further term of three years up to 31 March 2023. The annual cap for each of
the three years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 and ending 31 March
2023 shall be HK$230 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.

During the 2021 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray
Group and the Group was approximately HK$129 million which was within the

relevant annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

(3) SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP

During the 2021 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 27 February 2019 in relation to sale of fabrics by the Group to
Toray Group for a term of three financial years. The annual cap for each of the
three financial years ending 31 March 2021 shall be HK$100 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Contd)

(3) SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP (Cont’d)
During the 2021 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray
Group and the Group was approximately HK$35 million which was within the
relevant annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. PwC had issued an unmodified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected transactions (1) to (3)
as disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter was provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are Independent
Non-executive Directors). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the financial statements of the Group for the 2021
Financial Year and discussed with the management and the auditor of the Company
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
controls and financial reporting matters.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the recent development of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, an amended and restated terms of reference for Audit Committee was
effective from 1 January 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 50 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2021 Financial Year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by the Shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

WAN Wai Loi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2021
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance
to enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders of the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that business activities and decision making processes are
properly regulated.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE OF THE COMPANY

The Company complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 2021 Financial Year.

Mr. Wan Wai Loi had served as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company during the year, hence the Company did not comply with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. While the dual role arrangement has provided strong and consistent
leadership and facilitated the implementation of the Group'’s business strategies,
the Company will nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of
the prevailing circumstance.

B. THE BOARD

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, the
Board is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial
objectives of the Group and ensuring that Shareholders’ interests are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated
to the Executive Directors and the management. The Board has established
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to these
committees as set out in their respective terms of reference. All relevant terms
of reference are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
the responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the business
and operating activities and development of the Group. Every Director is
committed to devoting sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of the
Board and material matters of the Company and serving the Board with such
degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and

professionalism.

Executive Directors are responsible for managing different aspects or
functions of the business of the Group. The Non-executive Directors advise
on business strategies of the Group and review its financial and operational
performance. The INEDs serve the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and provide independent reviews
on the issues of strategic direction, development, performance and risk
management of the Group.
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EXRERRSE

B. THE BOARD (Cont’d)

1.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

All Directors had been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and
regulatory matters to ensure that they had a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and that they were fully aware of their
responsibilities under applicable laws and regulations.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of the Company,
including approving and monitoring all major policies, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control, risk management framework, significant
financial and operational matters as well as nomination of directors. The day-
to-day management and operation of the Company are delegated to the
management team of the Company under the supervision of the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and
participate in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor and
ensure the management carrying out all directions and strategies set by the
Board appropriately.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Profiles of current Directors are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report
and are available on the website of the Company. The list of Directors during
the 2021 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Vice Chairman)

Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Toshiya ISHII

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

There is no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
the Directors. The list of Directors and their roles and functions are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont’d)

3. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont’'d)

The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having
sales and marketing experience and technical knowledge in textiles business,
administrative and managerial experience in PRC factories and financial
and accounting skill. Taking into account the nature and scope of business
operations and development of the Group, such balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives is appropriate for effective decision making. The
Board considers that the Non-executive Director and each of the INEDs bring
their own relevant expertise to the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against Directors and management in execution and discharge of their duties
or in relation thereto.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional member of the Board.
Suitable candidates who are experienced and competent and able to fulfil
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be recommended
to the Board.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at
the AGM, the Shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.
Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are
published on the website of the Company.

Each of the Executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years
and each service agreement is renewable thereafter until terminated by either
party by giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors had been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable
thereafter.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont’d)

4. APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election pursuant to the Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and then be
eligible for re-election at that AGM. In addition, at every AGM, one-third of the
Directors, including the chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by Shareholders at least once every three years. The Directors
appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election
as mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating the total
number of Directors for the time being but shall not be taken into account in
calculating the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors
eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to Shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on their re-
election.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to Shareholders by announcement. Any reasons
for resignation given by the Director shall also be included in such
announcement.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director had been provided with comprehensive and
tailored induction of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of
our factory in China on the first occasion of his appointment.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
from time to time updates the Directors on the latest development on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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5. INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS 5 EBZABNBREERE (B)
(Cont'd)
According to the training records provided by the Directors, a summary of RIRE FPTIR RS FIRE 8% - 7 2021
which during the 2021 Financial Year is as follows: FURFEHBNEIZEHEZN

T

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FEREE B B B
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI BERBEE B B B
Mr. TOU Kit Vai A B A& B B B
Mr. Toshiya ISHII BHEREE B B B
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong BEREE B B B
Independent Non-executive

Directors BIYFHTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael BR¥ Y18 £ A, B A, B A, B
Mr. NG Ching Wah higELRE B B B
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel e B &8 % B B B
Type of trainings 5= II4E B
A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses A 2MENE  BHE - @R

2l IR

B. Reading materials B. BlEER
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd) B. E£R (&)
6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS 6. EEREBERRRKRE
NUMBER OF MEETINGS ERRY
The Board met at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened %?%ﬁi” 5'%23% L4k I
when deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for REFRRATEREFRERE 2F

the whole year had been informed to each Director. The attendance record of
the Directors is set out on page 41 of this annual report.

During the 2021 Financial Year, the Board held 4 meetings to approve
interim and final results announcements, interim report and annual report, to
consider dividend policy, to discuss significant issues and general operation of
the Company.

The Company held the AGM on 6 August 2020. All proposed Shareholders’
resolutions put forwarded were resolved by poll and were duly passed. The
poll result of each resolution was set out in the Company’s announcement
released on the even date.

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Notice of Board meeting will be served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the
Company Secretary as delegated by the chairman. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in
the agenda of the Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate
background information and supporting analysis are made available to the
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of the Board meeting. All
Directors are given separate and independent access to the Company'’s senior
management for further information and enquiries. The Company Secretary
and relevant senior management members attend all the meetings of the
Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont’d)

6.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Cont'd)

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS (Cont'd)

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the
Directors or substantial Shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in
the Board meeting. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote
on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he or
any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
"associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest
except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly
made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.

Directors have access to advice and services of the Company Secretary and
key officers of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes
of the Board or Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details,
the matters considered by the participants of those meetings and decisions
reached are forwarded to the participants for comments within a reasonable
time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board or Board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information
to allow the Directors to fulfil their duties properly. Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses with the
approval of the Board, if necessary.
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6. EXEREBERKRRAE (H)
HESRER
BEEN 2N FHRFEEHMLFE
BEER ERZB® ¥MZEE-
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6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Cont’d)
ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS
The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
AGM during the 2021 Financial Year are set out as follows:

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief  FEBRES (TE#

Executive Officer) THAEZ) 4/4 N/ARNiE A
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Vice Chairman)  REBLE (F1E/E) 4/4 N/ATE A
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer) MR L4 (B EHFEE) 44 NATER
Mr. Toshiya ISHII AHEREE 44 NATBA
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong AREEE 44 NATEA
INEDs BYFYTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael Bt EL 4/4 4/4
Mr.NG Ching Wah MEELE 4/4 4/4
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel TS 5 4 4/4 4/4

7. INEDS

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise throughout the 2021 Financial Year.

As at 31 March 2021, the Board comprised eight members with three INEDs.
The number of INEDs met the minimum requirement prescribed under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

23 1 il
3/3 il il
N/ATNE N/ATNE il
N/AiE R N/ATER il
N/ATNE A N/ANE A il
3/3 Il il
3/3 Il 1/1
3/3 7 11
BIYFHITES

ESRR 201 FHBFEREMEA
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LE=ZBUERTES - MEFRED
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LEERRE
kY = /= =
C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES (. IERERTHAR
The Chairman of the Board provides leadership for the Board and is responsible EERIFEBETRANAETHEE
for chairing the meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring EREERCEERBRESREAREA
that all matters submitted for discussion are discussed by the Board in a timely il mE R EMNMEFENER 17
and orderly manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the B EEgE R R R EEREH
management team and overseeing the operations for the Group. B & iE o
The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are Mr. Wan Wai Loi, ARRABERFRITHEHDHFAFREE
hence the Company did not comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code EE - MARRIKREETEEERTA
which requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate FRANMEXE A2 115 GREXHTEEF R
and should not be performed by the same individual. BmTBRAEMNBEEES LB TEHE
—ANEE) -
For the previous years, Mr. Wan has provided the Company with strong and RBEFE  FLAEABRARREMHEKR
consistent leadership and facilitated the implementation of the Group's business —HBHEE  BIRERERASEN
strategies in an efficient manner. The Company will nevertheless review the X AT ARENEREEER
structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstance. BRTRER RS -
With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all ERFWERYT EFBENEZRE
Directors were properly briefed on the issues arising at the Board meetings and EIBESFYEENZTENNEE -
provided with adequate information in a timely manner. WiEHRESTRER -
The Company received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs ARREEESBIIFENTESIRE L
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered MARBEIBEZRERL2FERBY
them to be independence of the management and free of any relationship that MEmMEREL  WRRBIIERTES
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgements. TBURERE BV ETMEUERE
TIEW S TR HET 2 R -
D. BOARD COMMITTEES D. EZERZEE

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

The Board has established three main Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each
chaired by different INED, to assist the Board in overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions
and recommendations at the Board meetings.

The terms of reference (as revised) setting out the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee have been reviewed by the Board with reference to
the CG Code and are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their

duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expenses.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervising the effectiveness of
the Group's financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching
Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. All of them are INEDs. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited annual consolidated financial
information of the Group for the 2021 Financial Year and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group with the management in
conjunction with the auditor. The Annual Report for the 2021 Financial Year has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2021 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee in respect of the 2021 Financial Year
included approving the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of
the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited interim financial information and
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30 September 2020;
reviewing the audited annual consolidated financial information and final results
announcement for the 2021 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group'’s
internal audit department; assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of risk management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the
whistleblowing policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The
attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the
table on page 41 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s external
auditor.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor during the years under review (and the previous year) are as
follows:

D. EZRZEE ()

EREES (H)

REEFERE (REF)  ARAIMNEZE
MFTIRMEZRIFEZRE 2 BRN
T

Audit Services EZ R
Non-audit Services IEEZRTE
— Tax consultation services — MR RS

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided
by the Company'’s external auditor and concluded that such services did not affect
the independence of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board about re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the coming year
and the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on appointment of Directors with due regard to diversity of the Board and
management of the Board succession.

The majority members of the Nomination Committee are INEDs. As at the date
of the report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah;
Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Wan Wai Loi and Mr.
Masaru Okutomi. Mr. Ng Ching Wah, an INED, is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

The Nomination Committee met once during the 2021 Financial Year and
reviewed the implementation of the board diversity policy (“the Policy”). The
Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will consider
a number of factors, including but not limited to educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, industry experience, age, gender and ethnic
origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and relevant provisions
under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and ethnic origin will
not be set when short-listing the candidates. The major work performed by the
Nomination Committee in respect of the 2021 Financial Year included assessing
the independence of the INEDs and making recommendations in line with the
Policy on re-election of the Directors of the Company to be subject to rotation
requirements at the forthcoming AGM (including the new director(s) appointed
by the Board who is subject to re-election requirement under rule 114 of the
Articles. The attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting
is set out in the table on page 41 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their works, complexity
of their responsibilities and performances and to make recommendations to
the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about his own
remuneration.

The majority members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs. As at the date
of report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah, Mr. Wan Wai Loi and Mr.
Masaru Okutomi. Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, an INED, is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met three times during the 2021 Financial Year.
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2021
Financial Year included reviewing the remunerations of the Directors and senior
management with reference to the remuneration levels of directors and senior
management of comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for
the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 41 of this
annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

Details of the remunerations of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 161
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Executive Directors’
remunerations shall from time to time be determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as
follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Sau Yee was appointed as Company Secretary on 23 November 2017
being a full-time employee of the Company to report directly to the Board. The
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure the Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed. During the 2021 Financial Year, the Company Secretary complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard of Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in such
Code throughout the 2021 Financial Year.
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H.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2021 Financial Year which gave a true and fair view of financial
position of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Company’s interim report and annual report
were prepared and published in accordance with statutory requirements and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner required under the
Listing Rules. Directors were provided with adequate information to enable them
to make an informed assessment of financial and other information on matters for
their approval. Furthermore, Directors were provided with monthly updates on
the Group's performance to enable them to discharge their duties.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibility to Shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 51 to 55 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. From time to time and at least annually, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure that they meet with
the ever-changing business environment as well as the requirements under
the Listing Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and credibility of the review, an
independent consultancy firm has been engaged to periodically conduct the
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board, assisted by the Audit
Committee, assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group by reviewing the investigation results
of management report and internal audits, and considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 was effective and adequate.

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to
time reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems and adopts corresponding
measures. Certain management committees were set up to set policies and
monitor potential internal control weakness in order to ensure that they meet
with the dynamic and ever-changing business environment.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Cont'd)

During the 2021 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of
the Group's internal control systems, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
training programmes, budget, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting function, through the Internal
Audit Department, the Audit Committee and with assistance of an international
independent risk consulting firm.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system which enables
employees to raise concern, in confidence, about the possible improprieties in
any matter relating to the Company, reported case will be assessed with due care,
with top management oversight and for valid compliant, appropriate action will
be taken to address the concern.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with
Shareholders and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy
of information disclosure to Shareholders and to protect the interests of
Shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote
effective communication, the Group maintains a website allowing Shareholders
to access updates on the Company's particulars where the Company'’s
announcements, financial information, shareholders’ communication policy and
other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with Shareholders through general
meeting of the Company to communicate with Shareholders. The chairman of
the Board, the representative of each committee and the external auditor attend
the general meeting to answer any questions from Shareholders. A separate
resolution shall be proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate
issue. A Shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and
vote in his stead.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website,
www.pacific-textiles.com. where information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public access.
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K. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY

GENERAL MEETING

Any two or more shareholders or any one shareholder which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may, in accordance with requirements and procedures
set out in the Articles of the Company, make a written requisition to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company and put forward
proposals at the meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition which must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward new resolutions
at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out
above.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Notice of all general meetings shall be sent to Shareholders in accordance
with the Articles and the requirements of Listing Rules. Notice for AGM and all
other general meetings shall be sent at least 20 clear business days and 10 clear
business days prior to the meeting respectively.

VOTING BY POLL

At any general meetings, the chairman may exercise his power under the Articles
to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of poll, explain
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from
Shareholders on voting by poll. The results of the poll, if any, will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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K. SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Cont'd) K. RRER (%)
PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES REBHZERF
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the R EZ T RHE ZRDEEMSER -
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong ERARBRNBFERERTEDESR
Investor Services Limited (Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road BHRRFSFELBERAF (i - HEE
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong and Telephone: (852) 2862 8555). FERKNERI18HFAEMPLIIME &
5 1 (852) 2862 8555) fE i °
Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries REMMAZEFERDIREERER - T
together with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail EE S E R B R A% B R (InNE 33
address, by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by Wk EBHI) BEEARB 2BESE
e-mail to ir@pacific-textiles.com. DEEME - K FE I E ir@pacific-textiles.
com °
The Board also encourages Shareholders to attend general meetings to make E=ERNEBRELERERE B
enquiries directly. REEH -
=
L. CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS L ZEXH

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

The Articles is published on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively. During the 2021 Financial Year, there was no change to the Articles
of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB E

_
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 56 to 157, which
comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

HEAGLBERERATRR

(RAERBEEMRIZERAR)

R
HIIE Fi a) AR

BAGEIERARAR ATEBEIEAR])
FEWBAR (UTHBIEEE]) IHER
FS6R 157 BEMEAMB®RE 21 ¢

MR2021F3RA31BNGREEERER
HEZALFEMNGZABRE
HEZALFENGZAZEKER
HEZALFEMNGRAERSEH R
HEZALFENGEABESRER K
BAEMBHREAWT  BREETEEHEE
ME -

A E L
BARS  ZEHREMBRECERERLS

AR ASEMNE B KRS ERAEHH
BT BEBEMN2021F3 A31 ANER
AU BRRAREBREZB L FENEEINTE
KERGGAReRE UTEBBEBQAIE
BB 5 5 48 E & A -

ERHNER
HHEREBEEEGTMASEMHNEBET
EREITR - RPEXFEN T AENE
TFEEARE LB B REMHRE
EENEEIBOPIEE— SR -

BPAGE HPITESHETBREETER
HEEWARMNE RIRHER -

B
REBESMASEMOCEEGFANE
EFADUATEBEIFRD BB &
SE YERTTAHTNEMEREME -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

ALK BT ITEBIT » Bl PR FAR N 1
HpE - +8522289 8888 - 1HH - +852 2810 9888 » www.,pwehk.com

EXHHBERERLA |

2020 /2021 %



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WA BHERE

52

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. We considered “Revenue recognition”as a key audit matter that was addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this

matter.

Key Audit Matter
REESEE

Revenue Recognition

LN 34

Refer to note 2.20 for the Group's accounting policies on revenue
recognition and note 5 for the analysis of revenue from sales of
goods for the year ended 31 March 2021.

BH ESERANHRARRBHGABE F2HM5E2.20 -
FHAEE2021F3 A3 BIEFEHEEMMAGERANSNT - &
2BMEs -

Revenue from sales of goods for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to HKS$5,384,897,000. The Group has operations in
several geographical locations, and derives revenue from sales to
multiple customers.

BZE221F3A31 B ILFEHEE MPEIA R 5384,897,000
Bt BEEERZEMERLLERT  UHZEEFHEDNS
WA e

Revenue is recognised when the control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customers have full discretion over the price to
sell the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified location
and the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customers.
EEMMNEGIHERERER (XNERTEFPE)  MEP
ﬁﬁ%%%uuﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%@%ﬁ@]l BRI EREPE
MEMORBHERE  BEEERAVA EEMNEZERE
)Eﬂ’ﬂﬁ BERERERRABEEBREEZFE  BEERNM -

We focused on this area due to the large volume of revenue
transactions derived from sales to multiple customers in different
geographical locations such that we have incurred significant time
and resources in carrying out our work in this area.

BMETZASERAREETRMERZEE P #HE KU
ARGER  WEMAETRZEENITHETEE T KRERMHE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMANEFNAEERAEENSE

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key internal
controls that are present in the Group's sales process from end-to-
end.

BB TR

4’3 §FT}L °

FELBREEEEY BESEHEEERETNERE

We tested samples of sales transactions against invoices and other

supporting documents. To the extent that those sales have been

settled, we also reviewed bank remittance advices and/or bank

statements in support of the payments made by the customers.

%ﬂFﬁEﬁ%’??"%‘i&ﬁ@i%'l‘ii#%ﬁ%%?&%H’Eﬂj%EM*\EIJ?&

1H1§2 CHEDHEE BT ESHXBER N REORITER
D%&/Xﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁi °

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date to assess whether sales
transactions were recognised in the correct reporting periods.
o ZPBE AR EREERBRAHANRELENHER
Z UTAHERIRETRERN WS BMER -

Our work also included testing of a sample of revenue-related
journal entries by inquiring management of their nature and
inspecting the relevant supporting documents.
BMOIEEpERBAMEREERFEEREHMBEEZ IS
M E AR R SRR ETRR -

We found that the Groups' sales transactions being tested were
recognised in a manner consistent with the Group's accounting
policy for revenue recognition.

BPRA BEEERAFANBEERZIERE BEEENHKAR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeqguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Leung Po Wah Pauline.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021
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BMEEN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 March 2021

FRRRER

HE2001F3A83MHIEFE

Revenue WA 5 5,384,897 5,476,196
Cost of sales k=N 23 (4,523,208) (4,551,618)
Gross profit ER 861,689 924,578
Other income and other gains/(losses) — net H AR A R HAb Uz~
(E#])— 5@ 22 193,246 146,741

(Impairment loss)/reversal of impairment of FEUBR X CRiE 18 ),

trade receivables B EURE 12 (5,396) 2,172
Distribution and selling expenses DERHEER X 23 (80,883) (63,985)
General and administrative expenses — M RITHRAX 23 (179,713) (189,919)
Operating profit KEHRR 788,943 819,587
Finance income HELT N 25 23,347 25,435
Finance costs B RS AR 25 (14,572) (11,435)
Share of profits of associates DGR & R R 2% F 9 40,647 37,340
Profit before income tax P18 % A& F 838,365 870,927
Income tax expense Frisfim 26 (103,026) (102,998)
Profit for the year FEmA 735,339 767,929
Profit attributable to: THATEERF

Equity holders of the Company RATEREFBA 721,491 743,489

Non-controlling interests FEVE B A S 13,848 24,440

735,339 767,929

Earnings per share attributable to equity holders FRANR G EZIHAE A

of the Company for the year (L BIR & A

(expressed in HK$ per share) (A ZRAETYIR)

- basic —ER 27 0.51 0.51

— diluted —#E 27 0.51 0.51

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ BEMI Z M FE I S4R A IS RER T A s 2
statements. o o

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 March 2021

FR2ERER

HE2001F3A83MHIEFE

Profit for the year FEEA 735,339 767,929
Other comprehensive income: Hi2mElA -
Items that have been or may be reclassified to BB 7 M2 B Y

profit or loss: EH -

Currency translation differences INEME EE 205,368 (162,317)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEKRALRE 940,707 605,612
Attributable to: TEIA L :

Equity holders of the Company AATIEREFBA 923,635 584,508

Non-controlling interests FE 122 ) 1 7 17,072 21,104

940,707 605,612
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial  BEMI ZHisE I S4R A BB RER T AT 2
statements. o o

EAGBMBEREARAT |
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GREERRXR
As at 31 March 2021 20213 A31H

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB K&K 6 1,433,276 1,410,037
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7 200,217 110,815
Interests in associates REERa &R 9 347,077 323,487
Financial assets at fair value through other BALEF AEMEELAD
comprehensive income ERMEE 10 853 853
Deferred income tax assets REFSHEE 19 15,525 19,579
Deposits for land use rights and prepayment for T REZ ST E HE
property, plant and equipment KRR ERTER A 13 71,744 47,586
2,068,692 1,912,357
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 11 1,223,425 1,133,792
Trade and bills receivables FEURR R R R 1R 12 863,552 741,994
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2o BERER
H b U IR 13 64,168 66,701
Amounts due from associates FEUEE & N B SRR 9 12,605 29,542
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMIA 14 15,437 -
Current income tax recoverable Al e BN AR 1S A 6,010 -
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER 15 11,323 161,645
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEEE 15 946,152 767,143
3,142,672 2,900,817
Total assets EEHRE 5,211,364 4,813,174
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to equity holders of AATEEFEABMGES
the Company
Share capital [N 16 1,411 1,435
Share premium &1 m B 16 1,303,246 1,398,998
Treasury shares 17 & 17 16 - (88,037)
Reserves 1 17 2,033,264 1,673,528
3,337,921 2,985,924
Non-controlling interests JE =M 15,704 11,132
Total equity ERBARHE 3,353,625 2,997,056
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2021

RREERRR(H)

R2021%F3A31H

LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings & 18 125,375 125,049
Lease liabilities HEBRRE 7 7,181 373
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHEE 19 63,219 50,989
Other non-current provision HihIEmeh i 21 37,310 26,305
233,085 202,716
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings BE 18 645,443 737,190
Trade and bills payables ERERRER 20 718,617 645,691
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R E b BT FRIE 21 165,527 183,862
Lease liabilities HEAE 7 34,036 771
Derivative financial instruments PTESBIA 14 3,282 6,994
Current income tax liabilities BNHIFS B & & 57,749 38,894
1,624,654 1,613,402
Total liabilities BEBEAE 1,857,739 1,816,118
Total equity and liabilities EEREEAE 5,211,364 4,813,174
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ BEMI Z M FE T b 4R & M B MEA T Al sE 2

statements.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24
June 2021 and were signed on its behalf:

Wan Wai Loi
FER

Director

EF

o e

9

FEERON2021F6 B 24 B EGA B ISR
RIRKREZEEREER

Tou Kit Vai
HER

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2021

GRERRBR

HE2001F3A83MHIEFE

Balance at 1 April 2019 R2019F4B1B2ES 1446 1,453,188 - 1,824,977 3,279,611 (9972) 3,269,639
Comprehensive income: 2EYA:

Profit for the year FERA - - - 743,489 743,489 24,440 767,929
Other comprehensive income: Hth2EMA

Currency translation differences NEREES - - - (158981)  (158981) (3336)  (162317)
Total other comprehensive income, HtzERABE

Jnetofta mEBR . RO S o 1158981)  (158981) (3330 ___(162317).
Total comprehensive income 2ENAAE - - - 584,508 584,508 21,104 605,612
Transactions with owners: BREARS:

Repurchase and cancellation of shares B E TR 1A () (54190 (88,037) - (142238 - (142239)
Share-hased compensation MG BER M - - - 1174 1174 - 1174
Dividends paid to equity holders MERFEARRRE - - - (B3 (737131) - (737,3)
Total transactions withowners ~ REFARZRE (0 _B4190) (88037 (35957)  (@7819%) - 7819y,
Balance at 31 March 2020 R2020%3831 B 2EH 1435 1398998 (88037) 1673528 2985924 1132 2,997,056
Balance at 1 April 2020 R2020F4R 18268 1,435 1,398,998 (88,037) 1,673,528 2,985,924 11,132 2,997,056
Comprehensive income: 2HUA:

Profit for the year iyl - - - 721491 721491 13,848 735339
Other comprehensive income: Hit2ERA

Currency translation differences NEREZE - - - 202,144 202,144 3224 205368
Total other comprehensive income, Ep2ERABE -

Jnetofta . MERR SR SO T 202044 202144 3224 205368
Total comprehensive income 2EARALE - - - 923,635 923,635 17,072 940,707
Transactions with owners: BREARS

Repurchase and cancellation of shares BRI REHEEN (24) (95752 88,037 - (7,739) = (7,739)
Share-hased compensation DG RER M - - - 584 584 - 584
Dividend paid to equity holders MEREAARARE - - - (564,483)  (564,483) - (564,483)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests [ 32 #| 2R & - - - - - (12,5000 (12,500)
Totaltransactions withowners ~~~ RERARAEE | (24)  (95752) 88037 (563899)  (571,638)  (12,500) _ (584,138)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R2021E3 831 Az &8 1,411 1,303,246 - 2,033,264 3,337,921 15,704 3,353,625

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

| 2020/2021 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS GERBERER
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE2021F3A31BIEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
B 52 TERT FH&IT
Cash flow from operating activities RETEMBEERE
Cash generated from operations EEELECZES 29(a) 706,149 948,683
Interest paid BEAFLE (10,368) (10,137)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREAFEH (26,471) (48,233)
PRC and overseas tax paid BT EREINIA (67,932) (45,566)
PRC tax refunded ERPERIA 17,132 17,811
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, RIEION 862098
Cash flow from investing activities RETEHFBSRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME WENEE (116,381) (179,034)
Increase in deposits for land use rights T b fE AR R S N - (7,673)
Proceeds from disposals of right-of-use assets ﬁﬁ{iﬁﬁ%;ﬁﬁ&%¥ B K
and property, plant and equipment B PRS- ] 29(b) 104,331 2,518
Dividends received from associates U B B &8 R B 2 AR B 9(a) 20,646 26,217
Placement of short-term bank deposits FARHRITER 15 (11,323) (161,645)
Release of short-term bank deposits fRER R HRITIF R 15 161,645 -
Interest income received 2 B M A 5,297 12,090
164,215 (307,527)
Cash flow from financing activities METEHSRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE (550,882) (523,261)
Repayment of loan to non-controlling interest ~ [AI3EFE MRS EEER - (19,493)
New bank borrowings FIGIRITEE 457,665 966,105
Payment of lease liabilities XNHEAE (52,445) (944)
Dividends paid to equity holders ME=FA AR RE (564,483) (737,131)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ) FE 2 I 1 4 2 R 1 R B, (12,500) -
Repurchase of shares 5 B %t (7,739) (142,238)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (730,384)  (456,962)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEESEEBEMNFER 52,341 98,069
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April R4R1VBZRERAEEEER 767,143 720,892
Currency translation differences INEEME 126,668 (51,818)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March MR3A31AZEERRSEHEER 15 946,152 767,143

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial  B&M Z B sE T SR A MERET A SR 2
statements. i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textile
products with production base located in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and Vietnam.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2021.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied for all of the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and derivative financial instruments which were

measured at fair value.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report

RERBRENRE

—REH
BEXRGBERBRARD(ARRA]) RE
MEAR (MR AEE]) TZREHE
EmZHERES HRAEEEMURSP
FEARKME ([HE]) RBRE -

RARERASHESTEMRIZAERA
7] o EpEff it & P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands ©

ARRBBRMNEEHERIHABER QA
EMRETT

BRBERBIN  WERETBREUS
TBT) 2R - WESEETBRER
2021 F6 A24BEES B ATIZ -

EHEERTZEFTBRRME

RAENEGAMBERRAER I REE
EETBEFHRREANTX - BRHH
BRI I EBRCRABEERFEER
FEM -

21 RREE
AEBGEVBHRRIRBEL G
fing ((BEEFMAE]) B
MBEREAMBREER ([EEHM
BREER ) R - GEFBHRKRTY
RIBESLRARERE  ERARE
AR EHEBRANSREERITE
EMITATDRAREE -



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group'’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New standards, amendments to standards to existing standards adopted
by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time for the reporting period commencing 1 April 2020:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of material

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 Interest rate benchmark reform

and HKFRS 9
Conceptual Framework for Revised conceptual framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 financial reporting

All amendments to standards and interpretation listed above do not have
significant effect on the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’'d)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but
are not effective
The following new and amended standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April
2020 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on
or after
Amendments to HFKRS 16 Covid-19-related rent concessions 1 April 2022
Amendments to Annual Annual improvements o HKFRSs 1 April 2022
Improvements Project 2018-2020
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Narrow-scope amendments 1 April 2022
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37
Amendments to Accounting Merger Accounting for Common 1 April 2022
Guideline 5 Control Combination
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts and the related 1 April 2023
amendments
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current 1 April 2023
or non-current
HK(IFRIC)-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower 1 April 2023

of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or
joint venture

None of the above new standards and amendments to standards
is expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations
The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Contd)

(a)

(b)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Business combinations (Contd)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2020/ 2021 Annual Report
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MBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Contd)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after
the date of acquisition and the investor's share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. The
Group's interests in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group's share of the aggregate fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its investments in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of profit of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Associates (Cont'd)
Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions

between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial

statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the

associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides

evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information

of associates has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive

directors collectively, who make strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “finance income” or “finance costs”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “other income and other gains/(losses) — net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions and balances (Contd)

(c)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, are included in

other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii

=

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign

entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHEITESHHREME (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 % MERSEE

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. All other property, plant
and equipment other than construction in progress are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation on other assets other than construction in progress are
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs (less
estimated residual values, if any) over their estimated useful lives at the annual
rates, as follows:

4% — 5%
10% - 20%
20% - 33% or shorter of the lease terms

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment 20% - 33%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
Computer software 10%

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment on which construction
work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses.
On completion, construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses if any. No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until the asset is completed and available for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.8 Financial assets
(i) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 GREEHEIFIBSHREME (F)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd) 28 CREE (&)
(ii) HERR R AL R

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(iii) Measurement (Contd)
Debt instruments (Contd)

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCl). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and recognised in ‘other income and gains —
net’ Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
“other income and gains — net”in the period in which it arises. Interest

income from these financial assets is included in the “finance income”.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report

HEMBRENE (B)

2 REEEEFEETRREE (F)

28 ERMEE (F)
(iii) 51 & (4&)
EFETA(E)

BRREFAREMEEBA
RERDAENHESRE R
EEMEECEE HWRFE
EREREEEINEAER
ME - AR RREFAEM
EEBA (K2 EEA) G
B -FREEZZH T AHM
2EBA - HER B HER 2R
B EE B IRAKE
RBERI S REER L
REF - RN EME2ERA
R R WA RE B bE
aEMOBEFA2EER
R TEABUA R U - %
BIHR - ZF2REENF
SUWAT R EBRMZRF A
FATEHA

BRAEF AR REEE
AR RS R R A SER A
Hit2EBRANEERAN
B ABRFE -RERAR
Bt A& E B IFE
B&E—#B i MEBRE K
s AN RS ER  WRE
EHIR A T E AU R MR -
FREINLEERY - ZEF R
B EE R B AFT AT
L ONIE



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(iii) Measurement (Contd)
Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in “other gains/(losses), net”in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as applicable.

(iv) Impairment
The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost using historical and forward looking data.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables and amounts due from associates, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10

2.12

2.13

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
value of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks.

2020/ 2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

When any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or
reissued.

Trade, bills and other payables

Trade, bills and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade, bills and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHEITETSHHREME (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.18 Employee benefits 218 EEEF

(@) 1EREAWEF

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit
scheme under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

The schemes are generally funded through payments to state/trustee-
administered funds. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(c) Share-based compensation

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

2.19

(c) Share-based compensation (Contd)

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent equity accounts.

(d) Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HEEHEEHEFESTHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.20 Revenue and income recognition

220 WARKEZER

(a) Sales of goods (a) #HEHm

(b)

()

@)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
textile products. Revenue are recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location and the risk of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the customers.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised based on the price specified
for each order.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group recognised
its down payments from customers under other payables and accruals
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Sub-contracting income
The Group provides ad-hoc sub-contracting service to customers. Sub-

contracting income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Handling income
The Group provides handling service for purchases of raw materials on
behalf. Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21

2.22

2.23

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using
effective interest method is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Leases
Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease

incentives receivable (if any);

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Leases (Cont’d)

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received;

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, such as term, country, currency
and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHEITESHHREME (&)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.23 Leases (Cont'd) 223 HE (&)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received (if any);

any initial direct costs; and

restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets comprise small items of office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
31(b)). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expenses
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group has
complied with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollars (“US$"),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese Dongs ("VND"). The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The Group hedges certain
of its exposure to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

As HKS is pegged to USS, management believes that the exchange
rate risk for translations between HKS and USS$ do not have material
impact to the Group.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and
Vietnam. Except for certain cash and bank balances and certain inter-
company receivables denominated in foreign currencies, transactions
are mainly conducted in the functional currency of the respective
group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities is considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group uses forward currency contracts to economically hedge
part of its foreign exchange risk. These forward currency contracts do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(a) Market risk (Contd)

(1)

(i)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Foreign exchange risk (Contd)

The table below illustrates the sensitivity as at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the respectively exchange
rates against the functional currency of the respective group entities,
with all other variables held constant, to the profit for the year ended
31 March 2021, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange impact
on translation of cash and bank balance, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills payables and accruals
and other payables denominated in these foreign currencies.

2021 2021 F

If USS strengthens/weakens against RMB X T A REFE,/ B E
If US$ strengthens/weakens against IND 32T ¥ fiE B AHE, B2 (&
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS A RBH BB,/ HE
2020 2020 F

If USS strengthens/weakens against RMB XL AREFHE &
If US$ strengthens/weakens against IND 3T ¥ #im B AHE, B E
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS i AR U B TAME, B2 E

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits and bank loans, details of which are
disclosed in Note 15 and Note 18 respectively, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

The Group's bank deposits and bank loans are subject to variable rates
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

2020/ 2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Contd)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Contd)

If the market interest rates for cash and bank balance and bank loans
had been 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group'’s post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2021 would have been approximately HK$1,560,000
(2020: HK$958,000) higher/lower.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, derivative financial instruments
and cash and bank balances.

(i) Risk management
Substantially all of the cash and bank balances, as detailed in Note
15, are held in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the
PRC, Macau and Vietnam. All derivative financial instruments are also
entered into with major financial institutions, which management
believes are of high credit quality. Management does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these financial institutions.

The Group monitors the outstanding debts from its customers
individually due to the concentration of credit risk. Management
assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account
its financial position, past experience and other factors. The
compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly monitored by
management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

Trade and bills receivables and amount due from associates

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade and bills receivables has been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and trade and bills receivables by due date.

The expected credit loss rates are based on corresponding historical
credit losses experienced up to 1 year and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

The Group has identified the Gross Domestic Products (“GDP") of
the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.

According to above mentioned consideration, the Group assessed the
loss allowance of trade and bills receivables as at 31 March 2021 to be
insignificant (2020: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) GENBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 BKERBRERE (H)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 M AEMEE ()
(b) Credit risk (Contd) (b) 1EE/mEE (&)
(i) &@EERE (&)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

Trade and bills receivables and amount due from associates (Contd)

Impairment losses on trade and bills receivables is presented as
provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables within
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.

Management also assessed that the loss allowance of amounts due
from associates is immaterial.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The directors of the Group consider the probability of default upon
initial recognition of the assets and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition. The following indicators
are considered:

actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

JE YRR TR SRR A R JE M
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BEHEHMAREITA R

financial economic conditions that are expected to cause a NHREREBHHE -
significant change to the company’s ability to meet its obligations; B RS A AR B B R 3k
TEEIE R AFIEE

actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the company;

significant changes in the expected performance and behavior
of the company, including changes in the payment status of the
third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Contd)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Contd)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group categories a receivable for
write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded greater than 365 days past due. Where the receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are

made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include certain deposits and
other receivables. These financial assets are considered to be low
credit risk primarily because they had no history of default and the
counterparties had a strong capacity to meet their contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed that the
expected credit losses for these receivables are immaterial under 12
months expected losses method. Thus, the loss allowance provision

recognised for these balances is close to zero.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirement of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was

immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of funding through adequate committed credit
facilities. The Group's primary cash requirements are for additions and
upgrades to property, plant and equipment, purchases of land, capital
injections into subsidiaries, and payments for purchases and operating
expenses and unexpected cash outflow due to the COVID-19 pandemic
or other unforeseen crisis. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through funds generated from its operations, bank loans

and other borrowings.

The Group'’s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and has available funding through adequate amount of

committed credit facilities to meet its working capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liguidity risk (Contd)
The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the consolidated
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

FENHRRME (R)

3 HM¥EBER(H)
3.1 BB EREE (F)
© wEtmEE (&)
TRARBEIEAER I RALE
BRGa‘EEREZENIEHA
ZHRIBHRzHBEEBRZD
- REPRBEZEBE/AMNN
AFERERE -

Bank loans RITER 645,443 - - 645,443
Loan from a non-controlling — AT B A B FEFE 1
interest of a subsidiary EmREER - = 125,375 125,375
Trade and bills payables FERTBR R R R IR - 718,617 - 718,617
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£ &8 T A = 3,282 = 3,282
Lease liabilities HEBE - 35,073 14,734 49,807
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R EAMD
FE AT RRIA - 49,778 - 49,778
645,443 806,750 140,109 1,592,302

Bank loans RITE R 737,190 - - 737,190
Loan from a non-controlling — AT B A B e 1
interest of a subsidiary EmREER - - 125,049 125,049
Trade and bills payables FERTBR R R R IR - 645,691 - 645,691
Derivative financial instruments T4 & @ T A - 6,994 - 6,994
Lease liabilities HEBE - 854 387 1,241
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B R EAMD
FERT IR - 54,864 - 54,864
737,190 708,403 125,436 1,571,029
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

3 HM¥EBER(H)
3.1 BB EREE (F)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

(c) Liguidity risk (Contd)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of the Group’s bank
loans with repayable on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The amounts included
interest payments computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand”
time band in the maturity analysis contained above.

Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors do not
consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretions to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment date as set out in
the loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayable on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments (including related interest

payable):

(c)

REER R ()
TREBERBEER BRI ZEE
EEFEREX AEHESRE
REBGRZBRITERZIBD
I o ZEFRBENE HF KRG
HZMEBMR - At - ZFFR
BB EXEBRS PR
SR J By ) 6 (8] P P 4% B 2 IR ©

AARAREZMBRR  EEY
TRBIRITE A BEITEEELAEFI LA
BERAEER EETRB/RETER
IR IR E R 7% N P51 2 BEE
BERERRER -

FEOM — RIFBEEEREHEEX
BEREREEERZIRITEE
(BREBEBEMHE) :

31 March 2021 20213 H31H = 648,515

648,515

31 March 2020 20203 A31 H - 745,635

745,635
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(c) Liguidity risk (Contd)

FENHRRME (R)

3 HM¥EBER(H)

3.1 BB EREE (F)

The table below analyses the Group’s derivative financial instruments

which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings

based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual

maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

© wEtmEE (&)
TRARBEIEAER I RALE
BEEHEANI SR 2 TS
ML EBREELEHEZITESR
TEAZAM -RERPEEZEH
BAKNERTERSRE -

At 31 March 2021:

R2021FE3H31 8 :

Forward currency contracts: BREEEAY

Inflow mA - 3,175 12,262 - 15,437

Outflow i - (2,108) (1,174) = (3,282)

At 31 March 2020: M202063 8318 :

Forward currency contracts: RHEREL

Inflow A - - - - -

Outflow igae (1,986) (2,558) (2,450) - (6,994)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d) BERBHRRM ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3
3.2 Capital risk management

HEEREE (&)
32ESERER

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, draw down or
repay debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
total capital. Total debt includes borrowings and bills payables as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet, and total capital is the amount of “equity” as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios were as follows:

AEEZESERBRARELAKE
RREELE URARRREHE®R F
BREEMRERAA NG  L#
FREZBERNEBIUREE KA
BRTEBIABRELRGEE  AKEA
EERRARRENZRESE W
BRBEEESD  BITHR  RIEE
BIE -

HBHEMRARAER  AREREAXEE
HRERER - P RIZREH AR
BRABABEE -EREERRER
REERBRMIIZEERENRE
NEERBBERGEEEREBERMT
ZI#Es] - BABBELEWNT

Borrowings EE 770,818 862,239
Bills payables BT EE 21,435 16,379
Total debt [ER k] 792,253 878,618
Total capital BB 3,353,625 2,997,056
Gearing ratio BARBFEEE 23.6% 29.3%

The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly due to decrease in bank borrowings
and increase in equity in the current year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation
The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair
value as at 31 March 2021, by level of inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2021.

FENHRRME (R)

3 HMKEREKRERE(HE)

3.3 AAEME
TREHIERFT 2R AEHAGEER
BABSHOMTAEER 202143 A
JTHUAARBEIEZSRBTI A -GA
BERUT=ZEAAEBRSE

HAEEXRBEEZRTSZR
BOREHRE) (F1E) -

BRTEI1EMBRERZBEN ZE
EXRBEZABER2HEMEA
AREE (BIPInER) REE
(AVRBER) (F28) -

BAESBEBELIFRETBERTS
HKEzEmA (NETERHA)
(£38) °

TRAINRAEBK2021F3A31H
BARBEIFEZEERAEE-

Assets EE
Financial assets at fair value BERALBEFAHEMEER
through other comprehensive At rEE (MsE10)
income (Note 10)
~ Club debentures —gS8ESF 853 - - 853
Derivative financial instruments  $T4£ 4@t T A
~ Forward foreign currency — R EAONE S £ (B EE14)
contracts (Note 14) - 15,437 - 15,437
853 15,437 - 16,290

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
- Forward foreign currency

=R
TEEBTA
—EHINES K (BFFE14)

contracts (Note 14) - 3,282 - 3,282
- 3,282 - 3,282
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2020.

FENHRRME (R)

3 HMKEREKRERE(HE)
3.3 A RE M (F)
TRINRAEERKR2020F3A31H
BAREHFECEERAGE-

Assets &E
Financial assets at fair value EBRAARBEFAEMEER
through other comprehensive AR & B & E (M 5E10)
income (Note 10)
- Club debentures —BHES 853 - - 853
853 - - 853

Liabilities =R
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 4@ T A
- Forward foreign currency — R EASNE S £ (FTFE14)

contracts (Note 14) _

6,994 -

6,994

6,994 - 6,994

There were no transfers between levels during the years ended 31 March 2021
and 2020.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry Group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the closing bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of interests in associates
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group's interests in
associates, in particular when they consider objective evidence of impairment
exists, such as the quoted market value of listed associate having fallen below
its carrying amount or significant adverse changes in the market environment,
including, among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 on the associates and the countries in which they operate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Impairment of interests in associates (Cont'd)

In determining the recoverable amounts of interest in associates,
management considered the higher of the value in use and fair value less
cost to disposal. In determining value-in-use, an entity estimates either: (a) its
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associates and proceeds on disposal, or (b) the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received
and proceeds on disposal. Any impairment loss is recognised by writing down
the interests in associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.

Income taxes, deferred taxes and other taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions where its subsidiaries
operate. Significant judgement is required in determining provisions for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group is also exposed to other taxes and duties. Significant judgement
is required in determining these provisions. Where the final outcomes of
these matters differ from the actual results, such difference will impact the
provisions made and the earnings stated in the statement of profit or loss.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate to tax losses,
depends on the expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different. Management has performed an assessment on the
recoverability of these deferred tax assets and consider that the realisation of
these tax losses probable and no impairment provision is required as at year
end.

2020/ 2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

—

(e

(f)

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3.1(b)). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward -
date.

looking estimates at the balance sheet

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in

depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of non-current assets

Non-current assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
including, among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic on the operations of the Group and the countries in
which it operates. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to disposal.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(f) Impairment of non-current assets (Cont’d)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the assets in the
business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's reported balance sheet and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future
cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
statement of profit or loss.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 7HER
The chief operating decision-maker ("CODM”") has been identified as the executive HEKERRECHER SR RAIRNIT
directors of the Company collectively, who review the Group’s internal reporting E5 FEMHAEEZALEZR - AT
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. HRBAHDEER
As all of the Group's business operations relate to the manufacturing and Eﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁ@?ﬁ&fﬁgﬂ
trading of textile products with similar economic characteristics, the executive BFRULERFRENSBREH  BTE
directors review the performance of the Group as a single segment, which covers ERBRE—DB(BIEREE R A
operations conducted by subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Vietnam. .ﬁiiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ% AT S R ET5) EB
The executive directors review resources allocation and assess performance of the AEE 2 RER - PITEZMER L N
Group on a regular basis based on the following financial information: BEAF  THERAKENERD KR
HEITRIRAAL
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
HK$'000 HKS'000
TERT FH&IT
Revenue (recognised at a point in time) WA (R 5 5E R T Bh e 3R 5,384,897 5,476,196
Gross profit E7 861,689 924,578
Gross profit margin (%) EFIZE (%) 16.0% 16.9%
Operating expenses H A 265,992 251,732
Operating expenses/Revenue (%) K S IR (%) 4.9% 4.6%
EBITDA (Note (i)) B BRI TEREHAEN
(FEE) 1,010,016 1,014,926
EBITDA/Revenue (%) FE I TERBEHINDERN,
WA (%) 18.8% 18.5%
Finance income R RN 23,347 25,435
Finance costs F 75 P R ) 14,572 11,435
Depreciation and amortisation (included in TEEEE GIAHENAAREZRZT)
cost of sales and operating expenses) 180,426 157,999
Share of profits of associates Ol =p: R —/NE] bl 40,647 37,340
Income tax expense Fris B 2 103,026 102,998
Profit attributable to equity holders of RATE=REE ABIE ST
the Company 721,491 743,489
Net profit margin (%) 40 F) = (%) 13.4% 13.6%
Total assets BEERE 5,211,364 4,813,174
Equity attributable to equity holders of RAFREREAARGER
the Company 3,337,921 2,985,924
Cash and bank balances H& BIRITE 957,475 928,788
Borrowings BE 770,818 862,239
Inventories rE 1,223,425 1,133,792
Inventory turnover days (Note (i) FERESE (WG 95 83
Trade and bills receivables FE YRR Tk R B 1R 863,552 741,994
Trade and bills receivables turnover days JFEUBR 30 K SR PR R B 2k (B EE (i)
(Note (iii)) 54 49
Trade and bills payables FERTBR R R R IR 718,617 645,691
Trade and bills payables turnover days (Note (i)  FE{S BR 50 & 45 7 8 B & (B (i) 55 49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Notes:

(i) EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before finance income, finance costs,

income tax expense, depreciation and amortisation.

(i) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the

year and the end of the year balances over cost of sales.

(iii) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the

year and the end of the year balances over revenue.

A reconciliation of EBITDA to total profit before income tax is provided as follows:

FEMBRRNE (F)

5 2EIEHR ()
BiaE

() B -~ TRIE T E X ATE MR E &
RARFHHIERA ~ IR ~ S
S PTE AT E R R A o

(i B8 B BIRF M FREHR 2B E TS
ZBR A S E PR ARRTH ©

(il) B8 B BRF M F R &R 2B E V1
BERAWAGHE -

FB -~ BIIE - TE RS N TS
BATG FI AR 2 MOHERNT

EBITDA FB - BIE - TEREHEAEF 1,010,016 1,014,926
Depreciation and amortisation U-D& ! (180,426) (157,999)
Finance income B 75 A 23,347 25,435
Finance costs B 75 A AN (14,572) (11,435)
Profit before income tax FT 18 B4 A1 4 7 838,365 870,927
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
The Group’s revenue represents sales of goods. An analysis of revenue by
geographical location, as determined by the destination where the products were
delivered, is as follows:

FENHRRME (R)

5 SIWER(E)
REERRAEEREE - HikE (A
EmXNZE®EAEE)EH 2 IRAK S
W

PRC i 1,024,559 1,091,888
Vietnam i 2,508,157 2,280,111
Hong Kong BB 326,929 466,141
America EQ 194,063 196,208
Other Asian countries (Note (i) H AT MBIR (M 5E ) 710,766 648,219
Sri Lanka HEBF 216,495 371,999
India E 51,354 80,529
Haiti S HY 263,222 231,266
Africa IEM 53,318 75,130
Others HAty 36,034 34,705

5,384,897 5,476,196
Note: M -

(i) Other Asian countries mainly include Bangladesh, Indonesia, Cambodia and
Thailand.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, customer A and customer B accounted for
approximately 39% (2020: 37%) and 18% (2020: 18%) of the Group’s revenue,
respectively. All other customers individually accounted for less than 10% of the
Group's revenue for years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The Group's non-current assets (excluding interests in associates and deferred
income tax assets) are located in the following geographical areas:

() EtEMBEREZERFERMT DR -
EREE S EEl

HEWVNEIANAIEFEE  EFAR
EE B AMG AN E B U A K 4939% (2020
F 1 37%) F218% (20204F : 18%) ° & =
2021 F K 2020F3A3NHIEFEE A
HEMEP & B MANEBBEAGER 10% -

REBZIERBDEE (TRERBZERE
ZHEENMRLEMSHEE) LR AT
&

PRC H 1,263,674 1,248,513
Hong Kong BB 10,815 10,865
Vietnam fade] 431,601 309,913

1,706,090 1,569,291
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

6 M¥ BMERRE

At 1 April 2019 R201954 818
Cost A 4,260 1,171,044 2408794 376081 34766 100636 124681 4220260
Accumulated depreciation  BiF7E (1532 (499,578) (1,887511) (254993) (25042) (31,3%) - (2,700,052)
Net book amount SAFE 2708 671466 521,283 121,088 9724 69,240 124,681 1520210
Yearended 31 March 2020 EZ 202053831 ALEE
Opening net bookamount ~~ EAIEEFE 28 671,466 521283 121,088 9724 69,240 124681 1520210
Adjustment for changes in

accounting policies EHUREY AR (2729) - - - - - - (2729)
Restated nethookamount ~ HBIIBEFE - 671466 521,283 121,088 974 69,240 124681 1517482
Additions TE - 1310 11919 13241 1775 614 13077 151,936
Disposals and write-off HE S - (2639) (6,774) (5716) 339) - (295) (10559)
Depreciation nE - 4901 (56,253) (35631) (3459) (9307) - (153656)
Transfers a4 - 43578 97,087 51,275 - - (192,840) -
Currency translation differences JME 5 = & - (40468) (38929) (7,109) (534) - (8130) (95,166)
Closing net bookamount ~ FHREEFE - 624235 52937 142,348 Al 60553 46493 1410037
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3831A
Cost A - 1,172,825 2,473,001 432,073 35,672 101,250 46,493 4,262,214
Accumulated depreciation  BFF7E - (548,590 (1,943,764) (290,625) (28,501) (40,697) - 8217
Net book amount SAFE - 624,235 529,237 142,348 AV 60,553 46,493 1,410,037
Yearended 31 March 2021 BZ 202153831 HLLEE
Opening net bookamount ~ EIEAFE - 624,235 529,37 142,348 717 60,553 46,493 1,410,037
Additions TE - 1128 33,367 29,151 762 1,098 45,684 111,190
Disposals and write-off i E S - (2,526) (1,094) 1,567) (17) = - (5,204)
Depreciation nE - (52,620) (73477) (36,695) (3,296) (8,982) - (175,070)
Transfers Bt - 2910 9,119 85 - - (12,114) -
Currency translation differences M B = 8 - 39,301 39,059 9,436 803 = 3,724 92323
Closing net bookamount ~~ FXEREF(E = 612,428 536,211 142,758 5423 52,669 83,787 1,433,276
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3A318
Cost A - 1,209,319 2,553,452 466,426 37,20 102,348 83,787 4,452,552
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HTE - (596,891)  (2,017,241) (323,668) (31,797) (49,679) - (3,019.276)
Net hook amount EEFE = 612,428 536,211 142,758 5423 52,669 83,787 1,433,276
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6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 6 W% BERRE(E)
Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is R BRaRABRZTERZ ST
analysed as follows: ™

Cost of sales HE KA 160,677 142,164
General and administrative expenses — M RITHRAX 14,393 11,492
175,070 153,656
7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 7 KAREERBEESE
(a) Balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (a) REFEEERBRERZERS
Right-of-use assets EHEEE

Year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2000F3A31BLEFE
Opening net book amount FUREFE - - - -
Adjustments for changes in G BEEESH 2P

accounting policies 1,292 2,728 115,321 119,341
Restated net book amount R2019FE4 1B ZRED|

asat 1 April 2019 BREFE 1,292 2,728 115,321 119,341
Additions = 845 - - 845
Disposals e (118) - - (118)
Depreciation e (891) (96) (3,356) (4,343)
Exchange differences MEEH 1 - (4,911) (4,910)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,129 2,632 107,054 110,815
At 31 March 2020 202063 A31H
Cost B AR 2,019 4,260 143,460 149,739
Accumulated depreciation ZEtinE (890) (1,628) (36,406) (38,924)
Net book amount BREFE 1,129 2,632 107,054 110,815
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 7 ERAREERHEHEAE (H)
(a) Balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (Cont'd) (a) REEEEEABRERZEH (F)
Right-of-use assets (Contd) EREESE (&)

Year ended 31 March 2021 HE2021F3A3BLEFE

Opening net book amount FHREFE 1,129 2,632 107,054 = 110,815
Additions NE 19 = 7,178 83,885 91,082
Disposals HE = (1,473) = = (1,473)
Depreciation e (795) (68) (3,380) (1,113) (5,356)
Exchange differences hEESE 2 1 5,150 (4) 5,149
Closing net book amount FHREBFE 355 1,092 116,002 82,768 200,217
At 31 March 2021 20213 A31H

Cost B AR 2,038 2,787 150,638 83,885 239,348
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (1,683) (1,695) (34,636) (1,117) (39,131)
Net book amount RmEFE 355 1,092 116,002 82,768 200,217
Lease liabilities HEEBE

Current portion ENE 34,036 771
Non-current portion ERBE D 7,181 373
41,217 1,144
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
(b) Amounts recognized in the consolidated income statement

(c)

EREEERE
EEEREZNE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Unwinding of interests on lease liabilities

HEMBRENE (B)

7 EAREERMEESE (E)
(b) REFENBRERAZEH

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
5,356 4,343
1,550 69

The total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$52,445,000 (2020: HK$944,000), including partial settlement
of lease liabilities in respect of the Group’s land use right in Vietnam
amounting to HKS$51,344,000 (Note (c)).

Depreciation of HK$5,288,000 (2020: HK$4,247,000) has been charged in
‘cost of sales”and HK$68,000 (2020: HK$96,000) in ‘administrative expenses’
respectively during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases land under land use right arrangements in the PRC and
Vietnam and owns leasehold land in Hong Kong.

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 2 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

As at 31 March 2021, prepayment for land use rights amounting to
HK$82,768,000 represented a land use right in Vietnam which the Company is
still in the process of applying for the formal legal title.

As at 31 March 2021, the outstanding lease liabilities in respect of such land
use right amounted to HK$33,515,000 (2020: Nil)

EXHHBERERLA |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

8 SUBSIDIARIES 8 MEBLF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 and 2020: T&RIRR 2021 F R 20203 A31 B2
FEWBAA :

Shares held directly by the Company:

RARERRERG
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKST 100% 100%  Investment holding
company 18T REER
EBRNES EREERA
Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKST 100% 100%  Investment holding
company 17T REER
RERUES EREELA
Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKST 100% 100%  Investment holding
company 1T REER
ABRARE ERALLA
Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited liability HKST 100% 100%  Investment holding
company 18T REZER
RERUES EREERA
Fast Right Group Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
FASBARAT company 1,000% 7T REER
RERUES EREALA
Gain Trillion Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
R ARALAF 1000087 RARK
Product Champion Limited British Virgin Islands, limited liability Uss1 100% 100%  Investment holding
company E3 REER

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

ERRARE ERELAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

FENHRRME (R)

8 MEAR (H)

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
KAABBERERS

Fast Right Group (HK) Limited
LREE (FR)ERAA

Pacific Textiles Limited

ERGBARAE

Pacific SPM Investment Limited

ERNEHBRABRAT

Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited (Note (e))
EXENERMERAEREARAR
(M (e)

Trillion Trading Macao Limited

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited (Note (a))
ER(ER) HBAZARAE (M5 (@)

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

Hong Kong, limited liability company
A ARAELLHA

Hong Kong, limited liability company ~ HK$103,000,000

B ARALLF 103,000,000 T
Hong Kong, limited liability company HKS1
Bk BRECLR 1B
Macau, limited liability company MOP1,030,000
B AREAELF 1,030,000 9%
Macau, limited liability company MOP1,000,000
R AREEAR 1,000,000 % P %
PRC, wholly foreign owned limited 1S$89,700,000

liability company 89,700,000 7T

TENEBEBREMLA

100% 100%  Investment holding
100% 100%  Investment holding and trading
of textile products in Hong Kong
RERETREEREGBRES
100% 100%  Investment holding
100% 100%  Trading of textile products in Macau
REMETHBRES
100% - Trading of textile products in Macau
REMETHERES
100% 100%  Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in the PRC
RBEETHERHERES
EXRHGBEBRERDE | 202072021 T3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

FENHRRME (R)

8 MEAR (H)

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Cont'd)

FAREERERS : (H)

Pacific GT Limited

PCGT Limited

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited (‘PCTL")
(Note (b))

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited ([PCTL)
(FtE (o)

South Shining Limited
HEERAA

Joyful Wonder Limited

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information
Technology Limited (Note (c))
BMBEEANRERAF (MiE©)

Top Textiles Limited (Note (d))
Top Textiles Limited (Fff 3£ (d))

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$19,025,000

company 19,025,000 7T
EBRAES EREALR
Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$3,900,000
FE BREEAR 3,900,000/ 7T
Vietnam, limited liability company US5$48,000,000
Bl BREEAR 48000,000% T
British Virgin Islands, limited liability Uss1
company [
ABRNES EREALA
Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000
B BREEAH 10,0007 7

RB10,000,000
ARE
10,000,000 7T

PRC, wholly foreign owned limited
liability company
e NEBEBRELAR

1S$14,000,000
14,000,000 % 7T

Vietnam, limited liability company

B BREELA

2020/ 2021 Annual Report

95%

71.25%

71.25%

95%

100%

100%

100%

95%

71.25%

71.25%

95%

100%

100%

100%

Investment holding

Investment holding and trading
of textile products in Hong Kong

REBETREAERRSBRES

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in Vietnam

REBETHERRERES

Investment holding

Investment holding

Provision for information technology
service

REEAMRRS

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in Vietnam

REBETHERRERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Notes:

(a)

(f)

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited is a wholly foreign owned limited liability company
incorporated in the PRC with registered capital of US$89,700,000 to be operated
from July 1997 to July 2047. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has fully paid up the
registered capital to this subsidiary.

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Vietnam with registered capital of US$48,000,000 to be operated from April 2013
to January 2054. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has fully paid up the registered
capital to this subsidiary.

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information Technology Limited is a wholly foreign
owned limited liability company incorporated in PRC with registered capital of
RMB20,000,000 to be operated from May 2016 to May 2046. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group is yet to pay up registered capital of RMB10,000,000 to this subsidiary.

Top Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Vietnam with
registered capital of US$14,000,000 to be operated from December 2019 to
December 2064. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has fully paid up the registered
capital to this subsidiary.

Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao Commercial Offshore Limited has been
subsequently deregistered on 13 May 2021.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 March 2021 is HK$15,704,000 (2020:
HK$11,132,000), mainly comprised the Group'’s investment in Vietnam through
Pacific GT Limited, PCGT Limited and PCTL. The non-controlling interests in
respect of South Shining Limited are not material.

EXHHBERERLA |

HEMBRENE (B)

8 HMIELE (&)
B EE

(a)

(f)

ER(EB)HBIONLERRAIA K
R EEMR L ZINEBERREER
A HFEME A A89,700,0003% 7T © M
1997 F7 ARG EEE2047F7H - 1
20213 A31 B AEBED AR ZHE
ARIZAMER -

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited & — &R 7
MEaEMKZz BRETAE - EiEf
& 7K 48,000,000 7T * F12013F 4 B
PR 2B 20541 A - B2021F3 A
318 - AEBE ST ENE QR Z ik
EMNESEEMMEBRAGTA—RIVT
B 2N BEEBREEAR
HEMEARA AR 200000007 © #
201645 AR 2B E 20465 H o A
20213 A31 8 AKEE KRB ZH
B ez aEfE R AR 10,000,000 7T ©

Top Textiles Limited & — R KA i F % it
Kz BREERR  HFMELRA
14,000,000 7T * FH20194F 12 A M 1A
BB ZE2064F 128 102021 F3 A 31
E'K%E%&E%WEQEZE%E

B AREIMNERPIBE X RIEERA
RHEZBEMN2021F5 A13HFE -

BARFEHMEER

20213 A31 B 2 FEHEHI R
48 % /515,704,000 78 7T (2020 & ¢
11,132,000870) ' X 2BEAREEHE
i Pacific GT Limited + PCGT Limited &
PCTLAMEEITHIRE -BEARA
AR FEIEGIEERBIEE R o

2020 /2021 %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(f) Material non-controlling interests (Cont'd)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

FEMBRRNE (F)

8 [ELA ()

() BERFEHMERS (B
HEEAFZED BB LT
ATHINERHAREN S BEARW
SRS SMB AR M BE
FE -

Summarised balance sheet ZEEEBERBE
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,925 2,925 382,603 384,469 290,374 277,605
Current assets MEEE 141,953 104,131 211,076 259,969 183,118 148,224
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - - 125,375 125,049 44,491 26,305
Current liabilities nHEE 3,956 5816 445,438 463,295 51,377 61,846
Net assets BEFE 140,922 101,240 22,866 56,094 377,624 337,678
Summarised statement of

profit or loss BERHYE
Revenue WA - - 989,736 1,209,675 559,634 669,861
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BB)/ & (2,718) (14,186) 17,626 72,626 31,017 60,073
Other comprehensive FEEMZA(BR)/

(loss)/income for the year WA - - - - 11,214 (11,617)
Total comprehensive FEE2E(BE)/ WA

(loss)/income for the year i (2,718) (14,186) 17,626 72,626 42,231 48,456
(Loss)/profit attributable to 2 B & IE¥E I M HE 25

non-controlling interests 2 (B18),/ &7 (136) (709) 5,067 20,880 8,917 4,269
Dividends paid to () JE I M4 R AT

non-controlling interests & & - - (12,500) - - -
Summarised cash flows BeHRERE
Net cash generated from/ EEEDME/ ()

(used in) operating activities 23R & F5 - - 19,233 (17,688) 18,002 12,518
Net cash generated from/ REEGHE/ ()

(used in) investing activities IR & F %8 - - 35 2,051 (13,094) (19,613)
Net cash used in financing ~ BEEFHMARE

activities FE - - - - - -
Net increase/(decrease) in HehReEEEE

cash and cash equivalents 30,/ (i) F %8 - - 19,268 (15,637) 4,908 (7,095)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

2020/ 2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
(f) Material non-controlling interests (Cont’d)
The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

As at 31 March 2021, cash and bank deposits of HK$7,865,000 (2020:
HK$2,957,000) of PCTL are held in Vietnam and are subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill

FENHRRME (R)

8 MEAR (H)
() BERFEHMERS (B
ERAEMRARMEFENSHE -

202193 8318 - PCTLA M #
B e KB ITHF5£7,865,0008 7T
(20204 : 2,957,000/ 7T) * BAZ
T3 INE B R E BIFRBR o 5% F 5
T & I 157 7 49 1 B 0B (B AR IR
B - WS BT R AR BE E AIBRSL

9 RBEARZEZREN—BEEQR
MIE

() PEEEFERBE

SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd. FTIER(BEMN) RBEHHBER
("SPM Automotive”) BRAB(TEIELXR]D 45,835 37,649
Teejay Lanka PLC (“PT Sri Lanka”) Teejay Lanka PLC ([PTHT 2 1) 301,242 285,838
347,077 323,487

Movement in share of net assets of associates are as follows:

DEBERREEFEZEHNT ¢

At 1 April n4A1H 323,487 320,572
Dividends 9= (20,646) (26,217)
Share of profits 246 F 40,647 37,340
Currency translation differences SN E E 3,589 (8,208)
At 31 March R3A318 347,077 323,487

EXRHGBEBRERDE | 202072021 T3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd)

The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2021 and 2020, which were held

indirectly by the Company, are as follows:

FENHRRME (R)

9

REBEAFR2RZREM—BBEE QAR

;IE (&)

(a) PHEEFENEETE (&)
720214 202053 A31 B 2 Bt &
AR (HARRBERE) 25BN
T

SPM Automotive
FIEX

Teejay Lanka PLC

SPM Automotive is an unlisted company in the PRC and there is no quoted

PRC, sino-foreign owned limited US$7,500,000
liability company 7,500,000 7T

T RNEERREERA

Sri Lanka, limited liability RS2,749,266,000
company 2,749,266,000

WEER - FRAEAF HERREL

market price available for its shares.

At 31 March 2021, the quoted market value of the Group's interest in PT
Sri Lanka, which is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, was

approximately HK$305,849,000 (2020: HK$170,624,000).

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

2020/ 2021 Annual Report

33%

28%

33%  Manufacturing and trading
of vehicles related textile
products in the PRC
PRHE#TARRRES AmE
ERES

28%  Manufacturing and trading of
textile products in Sri Lanka
REERRETHEREER
25

ETERR—FBEFLHRA A
It H B 3 4 T A T 5 3RME o

B2021F3 8318 REBRKPTH
BT (—HRTES RN GEFE
AR B ETMER R KR
1 1E 49 /4 305,849,000 7% 7T (2020 4F :
170,624,000 7T) °
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9

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd)

Summarised financial information for associates

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for SPM Automotive

and PT Sri Lanka, which are accounted for using the equity method.

FENHRRME (R)

9 REBEARZEZREN—BBHEQR

IR (F)

(@ PEEEFEEBE (H)
BELAMYHEENEE
ATHEIMETERARPTH EH RIA
REAABRNOMBEMRE -

Summarised balance sheet EEEBRBE
Non-current assets FRBEE 6,212 6,222 415,110 419,980
Current assets MEEE 234,107 183,961 810,487 671,211
Non-current liabilities FERBEaE = - 78,662 80,264
Current liabilities TEAE 101,426 76,095 452,550 363,501
Net assets BEFE 138,893 114,088 694,385 647,426
Summarised statement of BEREE

profit or loss
Revenue WA 425,438 409,724 1,429,676 1,468,652
Profit for the year FERF 38,232 24,751 93,241 104,752
Other comprehensive income FEEMEZEEA

for the year = - - _
Total comprehensive income FEEZABALE

for the year 38,232 24,751 93,241 104,752

EXRHGBEBRERDE | 202072021 T3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 9 REEZEQATZEIZREMN—BEBZLAR

~E (&)

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd) (a) P HEEFEEETE (F)
Summarised financial information for associates (Contd) BELN AR EEEZE (F)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the LB E N E R E AR EE
associates to the carrying value of the Group’s interest in associates is as REFE R FIRRREAENEENT

follows:

Opening net assets at 1 April %4 A1 HE4]

ZEEFHE 114,088 119,065 647,426 626,306 761,514 745,371
Currency translation INEREESR
differences 8,478 (8,150) 1,790 (15,212) 10,268 (23362)
Profit for the year FERF 38,232 24,751 93,241 104,752 131,473 129,503
Dividends i ¥=) (21,905) (21,578) (48,072) (68,420) (69,977) (89,998)

Closing net assets at 31 March A3 31 HE XK

ZEERE 138,893 114,088 694,385 647,426 833,278 761,514
Net assets attributable to
the Group AEEEGEEFE 45,835 37,649 193,804 180,696 239,639 218,345
Goodwill EES - - 108,302 108,021 108,302 108,021
Less: Unrealised gain on sale of J& : I E#E T —
machinery to BEARZ
an associate AER W - - (864) (2,879) (864) (2,879)
Interests in associates REE AR 2 45,835 37,649 301,242 285,838 347,077 323,487
Dividends received from Bl e R AR A
associates 7,229 7121 13,417 19,096 20,646 26,217
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial L E R R MR N T B S R AT A
statements of the associates adjusted for differences in accounting policies SR WERAEBEBEE Rz
between the Group and the associates. B ERELAE -

118  Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report
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9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont'd)
Summarised financial information for associates (Contd)
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s share of contingent liability in respect
of a pending tax claim against PT Sri Lanka amounted to approximately
HK$8,389,000 (2020: HK$8,591,000). The Group has no other contingent
liabilities relating to its interests in associates.

Cash and bank deposits of HK$89,894,000 (2020: HK$61,993,000) which
belongs to the Group’s associate in the PRC are held in the PRC and are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the country,
other than through normal dividends.

(b) Amounts due from associates
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing,
repayable on demand and current in nature. The amounts are denominated in
Uss.

HEMBRENE (B)

9 RBERAZEZREN-—BBEQT

FIE (48)

(a) PHEEFENEETE (&)
BE R EREZE (&)
MR2021F3A318 REBER—IBY
PTHTER RIRD 2 ARBI M B R E(L
=B B E4 58,389,000/ T (2020
18,591,000/ 7T) - AEBEZEH
thEREEE TR R BEE -

RABEBEREBRASERP 25
ENEIMIE S RIRTT1F 589,894,000
,%m(zozoi 61,993,000/ 7L) * A
BZHAINEEFIRENBRR - ZE
imﬁﬁ\\Ea%lJ%Em;ﬂélmEtH§ZK
VEHPR ) - M35 18 i AR B 0E I R R
G e

(b) B A RRE
FEUE 2 AR RIB A EIKE - 28 -
RERBEEENBERENELE - 25
LAZE TTEIME

._I
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10 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 10 RAAEF AEMZEAVRANSREE
INCOME

Club debentures SHEESH 853 853
At 1 April w4A1H 853 853
Fair value change NAEEE - -
At 31 March M3A31H 853 853
The fair values of club debentures are based on second hand market prices. SHEGEHFZAABENRE-_FMHEE
See Note 3.3 for further information on fair value. The club debentures are EeoAMFAEBEAABZE—FHE
denominated in HKS. B e BEFUBTLIIE -
11 INVENTORIES M %78

Raw materials R 843,976 735,063
Work-in-progress &M 111,390 135,015
Finished goods BIAL 268,059 263,714
1,223,425 1,133,792
The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year amounted to FRAFABEEKRETAZFEFEKR XL
approximately HK$3,907,029,000 (2020: HK$3,897,936,000). 7$3,907,029,000% jt (2020 4 :

3,897,936,000 78 7T ) °
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12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

FENHRRME (R)

12 EWERAR R EE

Trade receivables JE W BR 3N 816,207 680,870
Bills receivables T 49,368 62,686
865,575 743,556

Less: Provision for impairment of trade R FE AR FOR B R B
receivables (2,023) (1,562)
863,552 741,994

Majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 120 days. The aging
analysis of trade and bills receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

AEBRKIFHPHEZEERN T30
0K - IREBRZEH  BURERKEEE
ZERE DWW

0 - 60 days 0—60K 653,969 732,248
61— 120 days 61—120K 208,405 10,239
121 days — 1 year 121K—14 3,201 1,069

865,575 743,556

Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

ERMEAERRIZAT ERFIE

HKS BT 118,972 69,734
uss EV 667,531 604,157
RMB AR 79,072 69,665
865,575 743,556
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12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 12 EWERA R EE (#])

The top two customers accounted for approximately 32% (2020: 35%) and 28%
(2020: 19%), respectively, of the Group's trade and bills receivables; All other
customers individually accounted for less than 10% of the Group's trade and bills
receivables as at 31 March 2021.

The fair value of trade and bills receivables approximate the net book carrying
amounts.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and
bills receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the
allowance.

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

B AEP DR 46 2N & B e U AR 3K
M ZE 1% 32% (2020 4F : 35%) K 28% (2020
G 19%) 20213831 AR
tEFPEAMGEAERERERRERD
#10% °

FEM AR SR N R 2 A S (B B BR EDFHE AR

4+

Eo

AEBRBEBMBREERE OB
TR EEMEEER  UHAARK
ERRREBEEREEAEHNBERER
B -MEI BB EREZFE -

7K 45 8 B K P LR B 2 B )
mF

At 1 April m4A1H 1,562 3,811
Currency translation differences SN E R 172 77)
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment) of JiE Wt BR FOR B B 18 (& B (E )

trade receivables 5,396 (2,172)
Written off 88 (5,107) -
At 31 March M3HA318 2,023 1,562

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the net book
carrying amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2020/2021 Annual Report
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13 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 12 e BERAREREMGERRE

Rental, utility and other deposits He  2ARBEAMZS 487 296
Prepayments for purchase of inventories and BETEEBEEMBNNE

consumables 24,271 26,317
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEME  BEMEBEMNRIE

plant and equipment 71,744 39,913
Deposits for land use rights T RERS - 7,673
Other prepayments HAiIE5RIA 5,208 8,751
Value-added tax recoverable AT U a3 E A 24,310 11,987
Others Hitb 9,892 19,350

135,912 114,287

Less non-current portion: RIEMENE D -
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEWE WERZBEMNKIE

plant and equipment (71,744) (39,913)
Deposits for land use rights T RERS - (7,673)
Current portion mENE 64,168 66,701

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

Be  BAKBREREMGERRERAT
B¥IIME :

uss$ =V 17,549 30,479
VND WA 59,953 26,317
RMB AR 55,033 55,142
HKS T 1,002 1,612
MOP el 2,375 737

135,912 114,287
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13 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 13 8BE BENAREREMGERRE (H)
The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BRI R A EYRIE 2 BRE
approximate their fair values. BEHEQNAERE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the carrying value of REEB  ZEREERRRES REM
deposits and other receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. JEWRIEZBREE - NEBW AT EE
AR mIEEIR o
14 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 14 fTE€®MIT A

Assets: BE:
Forward foreign currency contracts RHSNES LY 15,437 -
Liabilities: a8E:
Forward foreign currency contracts RHEIIME S K (3,282) (6,994)
As at 31 March 2021, the notional principal amounts of the Group’s outstanding 2021 F3A31H  AEEZ REBHER
forward foreign currency contracts were HK$254,602,000 (2020: HK$234,016,000). HiOMNE & 8 2 BE A R A 254,602,000
778 (2020 FF 234,016,000 7T) °

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the derivative financial instruments REER  TEeRITAEZSEREER
at the balance sheet date is the book carrying value of the derivative financial BATESRITAZIREE - GR#E—
instruments. Refer to Note 3.1 for further information. SER - E2BMNE3 -

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 15 AERBSEEEAUREHRITER

Cash and cash equivalents RekHeFEER 946,152 767,143
Short-term bank deposits MEERITER 11,323 161,645

957,475 928,788
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the book REHEB  &EREERBARITEESZ
carrying value of the cash at banks. BREMAE o
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15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

(Cont’d)
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the

following currencies:

FENHRRME (R)

15 RERBAEESHEREUARERBITER

(%)
RekReFERAAREHRRITER
BATERIIE :

uss E 700,225 673,432
HKS BT 144,720 50,628
RMB AR 108,300 200,828
VND WrEE 3,502 3,634
LKR EBREL 27 29
Others H 701 237

957,475 928,788

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB and VND are primarily
deposited with banks in the PRC and Vietnam. The conversion of RMB and VND
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out
of the PRC and Vietnam are subject to rules and regulations on foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC Government and the Vietnam Government,
respectively.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates
ranging from 0.05% to 2.10% per annum at 31 March 2021 (2020: 0.08% to 2.51%
per annum).

The effective annual interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits at 31
March 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

AEEUAARERBEEINEZRS R
RITERDEEFRNPERBEREZR
T -BARBREEBEIEZGHILE
RINEARERER B KB EINAE
ST R BT e B R BT 0 B B M 2 S B
BRI A RHE

RITRSIRBITE AT R ELZ B
BAIS  R2021F3831BERN T &
£0.05% %= 2.10% (2020 4F : T 0.08% &
251%) °

R 2021 F K& 2020F3 A31H - REIERTT
GRZERFFERIBBNAT

Effective annual interest rate ERFH =
Maturities EEAH

2.03%
184-365 days X

1.61%
94-184 days K

EAGBMBEREARAT |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

16 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND TREASURY SHARES

(a) Share capital

FENHRRME (R)

16 RE& - ROREREERSG
(a) B

At 1 April 2019 H2019%4 A1 H 5,000,000 5,000 1,446,423 1,446
Repurchase and cancellation of BhRTETRR

ordinary shares (Note i) (B &ED) - - (11,000) (11)
At 31 March 2020 BK2020F3 A31H 5,000,000 5,000 1,435,423 1,435
Repurchase and cancellation of EERAETER

ordinary shares (Note i) (B ED) - - (24,215) (24)
At 31 March 2021 M2021F3A31H 5,000,000 5,000 1,411,208 1,411
Note: T -

0

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company cancelled 24,215,000
shares, which included (i) 22,091,000 shares repurchased in prior period but
not yet cancelled as at 1 April 2020, and (ii) 2,124,000 shares repurchased in
April 2020 at an aggregate consideration of HK$7,739,000. As at 31 March 2021,
all shares repurchased by the Company have been cancelled.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased a total
of 33,091,000 shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$142,238,000.
11,000,000 shares repurchased at HK$54,201,000 were cancelled during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares and the premiums paid on these shares upon the repurchase
were charged against the share premium account. An amount equivalent
to the par value of the shares cancelled was transferred from the Company'’s
retained earnings to the capital redemption reserve.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

16 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM TREASURY SHARES (Cont'd)
(b) Share premium

(c)

In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, share
premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company is in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share option scheme
The Group’s share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company by means of a shareholders’ written resolution on 27 April 2007.

On 11 October 2013, the Board of Directors approved the granting of options
to eligible employees to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$9.98 per share with vesting period of 3-9
years. These share options are exercisable at any time during the period from
11 October 2016 to 10 October 2023.

The fair value of the options granted on 11 October 2013, determined using
the binomial model, was HK$18,529,000 at the grant date. The significant
inputs to the model were share price of HK$9.98 at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$9.98, volatility of 45%, expected annual dividend yield of 9%, an
expected option life of 10 years, and an annual risk free interest rate of 2.09%.
The volatility measured at the grant date was referenced to the historical
volatility of the Company.

HEMBRENE (B)

16 RA& - ROOEERERRSD (H)
(b) BR 17 & 1B

(c)
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R2013F 10811 B EERHILE
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A1 BZE2023F10 810 BHB AT
AR ETTME o

BR2013F10 11 BRE B E
IR BB/ R R E A 18,529,000 7
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

16 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM TREASURY SHARES (Cont'd) 16 RA  ROBEREERSG (8)
(c) Share option scheme (Cont'd) (c) BRRFESE (&)
Movements in share options are as follows: BREZZHMOT

At beginning of year REH) 8,050,000 9,050,000
Lapsed during the year FRKRK - (1,000,000)
At end of year R E 8,050,000 8,050,000
The above outstanding share options have the following expiry date and Ll ARITEERE 2B E A RITE
exercise price: BoT:

Expiry date F|H B
10 October 2023 2023F 10 A10H 9.98 8,050,000 8,050,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

17 RESERVES 17 %

At 1 April 2019 R2019%4818 1,000 395,732 244863 14527 - 1,168,855 1824977
Profit attributable to equity holders of RRAERRE ARG ST

the Company - - - - - 743489 743,489
Currency translation differences IEREEE - - (158981) - - - (158981)
Total comprehensive income LNt - - (158981) - - 743489 584,508
Transaction with owners: HEEARS:

Share-based compensation expense (Note 24)  AB{D BER Z M2 X 1 (i3 14) - - - 1,174 - - 1,174

Lapse of share options BRELK - - - 2146) - 2146 -

Repurchase and cancelation of shares BARERY - - - - 1 (11) -

Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATRE - 25513 - - - (25513) -

2018/2019 final dividends WHN1ERERE - - - - - (361,606) (361,606)

2019/2020 interim dividends W900F4HkE - - - - - (375,525) 375,525)
Total transaction vith owners HEENRSEE - 25513 - 972 11 (760509) (733957)
At 31 March 2020 R2020E3831H 1,000 421,45 85,882 13555 1 1,151,835 1,673,528
Representing: AR

Proposed final dividend (Note 26) BERERE (H3kos) 254017

Others A 897818

1,151,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

17 RESERVES (Cont’d) 17 %% (])

At 1 April 2020 R2020E451R 1,000 421,245 85,882 13,555 1 1,151,835 1,673,528
Profitattributable to equity holders of the Company A FER 5 ARIEEF - - - - - 721,491 721491
Currency translation differences MEREEE - - 202,144 - - - 202,144
Total comprehensive income FEBALE - - 202,144 - - 721,491 923,635
Transaction with owners: HEFARS:

Share-based compensation expense (Note 24) HEMBERZBE T (Hiu) - - - 584 - - 584

Repurchase and cancellation of shares EORERG - - - - b (24) °

Transfer to statutory reserve ERTETHE - 14,060 - - - (14,060) -

201972020 final dividends 019200 REHRE - - - - - (254,017) (254,017)

2020/2021 interm dividends 000200 FERE - - - = = (310466)  (310466)
Totalrensection with owners REEARSEE - 14,060 - 584 u (578567)  (5638%9)
At 31 March 2021 R021E3831R 1,000 435,305 288,026 14139 35 1,294,759 2,033,264
Representing: R

Proposed fne dividend (Note 28) EHAERE (i) 310466

Others it 984,293

1,294,759
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17 RESERVES (Cont'd)
Notes:

0

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the

nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves represent legal reserve of a subsidiary incorporated in Macau

and statutory reserves of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the Group's subsidiary
incorporated in Macau is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its after-tax
profit to legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches a level equivalent to
50% of its capital. The amount of legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50% of

its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC is required to make appropriations to certain
statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years before any profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to
be appropriated to different statutory reserves are determined according to the
relevant regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the subsidiary.
Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset accumulated losses, to increase

capital, or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees.

These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the subsidiary.

No other statutory reserves are required to be made by the Group in other

jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

EXGHHBERERLH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

18 BORROWINGS 18 & &

Non-current: ¥R :
Loan from a non-controlling interest of — BB A R IEE M =
a subsidiary (Note (i)) REER I 125,375 125,049
Current: RE
Short-term bank loans (Note (ii)) FEERITE () 645,443 737,190
Notes: B
(i) The loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is denominated in US$, () —TFEMIE A R FEFE bl M A A R B A
unsecured, non-interest bearing, and not expected to be repayable within the next EsE REER 2R ERTEHE
12 months. The fair value of this balance approximates its carrying amount. ARARNRBEAANEE -ZE&EHBZA
AEHNEREEREE -
(i) The bank loans bear interest at floating rates. The fair values of the bank loans (i) WITEFIZFBFETB < RITERZ
approximates their carrying amounts. AAENERNEREE -
The Group's bank borrowings, after taking into account of repayable on demand KE RIEBRERERGTR  AEEBE 2817
clause, are repayable as follows: BEEBHBRNOT

Within 1 year or on demand ERIFRNRIREREE 645,443 737,190
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18 BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
The Group's bank borrowings repayable based on the scheduled repayment dates
are as follows:

FENHRRME (R)

18 £ & (/&)
Rt B EZ A PAEFREENRITE
=3/

Within 1 year 1ER 645,443 737,190
Between 1 and 2 years 1E2% - _
Between 2 and 5 years 2FE54F - -

645,443 737,190

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:

REBEBITEBEZEEHEENTERS
(=

uss EV 575,443 737,190
HKS BT 70,000 -
645,443 737,190

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's borrowings amounting to HK$348,741,000
(2020: HK$441,260,000) were secured by corporate guarantees provided by the
Company.

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

contractual repricing dates were as follows:

M2021 383180 "&EEAH
348,741,000 78 7T (2020 £F © 441,260,000 /&
T0) ZIEERARRIIREA D EERATIK
:J:Eﬁ °

AEBERBENMEECAREEOER
EEBMEIINT

6 months or less ~E A AR

645,443 737,190
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax

liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income

taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

The net movement in the deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

FENHRRME (R)

19 EERH IR
ERAEARITENGEBMEHEE
RENEAFS T B EEY - BEEMEH
BEERBBEDRAR —TEKEHER
MELITRERTEREBZRAF
REEEFEHE - BIPBBEEMRSH
EERBETRAEH-

BREFMSHARE (A WFESHIT

At 1 April ®4B18 (31,410) (24,046)
Charged to the consolidated statement of RiFE B R RN (M5 26)

profit or loss (Note 26) (13,001) (9,185)
Currency translation differences ISR 2 R (3,283) 1,821
At 31 March R3A318 (47,694) (31,410)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as

follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

EEMSREERABERE (Ret RFA—
BB EDEEREE 2 EH) 0T

EXEFSREE :

At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 21,333 6,063 27,396
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated ~ R4R& B XRFT A (FK)

statement of profit or loss 6,453 (6,063) 390
Currency translation differences SNEERE E 9) - 9)
At 31 March 2020 7202063 A31H 27,777 - 27,777
Charged to the consolidated statement ~ R4R & B X Nk

of profit or loss (7,745) - (7,745)
Currency translation differences INEE IR R 1,516 - 1,516
At 31 March 2021 A2021FE3831H 21,548 = 21,548
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19 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont’d) 19 IEER IE (1)
Deferred income tax liabilities: EBIEFFEHAE

At 31 March 2019 #2019%3A31H 11,553 39,889 51,442
Currency translation differences INEME R 9 (1,839) (1,830)
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated ~ R4RAEIE
statement of profit or loss (EA)// Bk (2,510) 12,085 9,575
At 31 March 2020 7 2020F3A31H 9,052 50,135 59,187
Currency translation differences INEEME R 10 4,789 4,799
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated ~ 4R & B &R
statement of profit or loss (FF ),/ #0Bk (1,620) 6,876 5256
At 31 March 2021 A2021%F3A31H 7,442 61,800 69,242
EXRHGBEBRERDE | 202072021 T3
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20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20 ENERERERE

Trade payables JE T BR 3R 697,182 629,312
Bills payables R 21,435 16,379
718,617 645,691
The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximate their fair values. ENEREERCEEESLEAAER
g °
Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. Trade and EFETZEERH BN TI0ENK -
bills payables were aged as follows: ERERREBEZERENAT :

0 - 60 days 0—60K 671,205 626,878
61 - 120 days 61—120K 40,135 11,286
121 days — 1 year 21RK—14 7,277 7,527
718,617 645,691
Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies: ERNERREBRZATEENE :

uss EV 571,910 555,339
HKS BT 14,937 15,463
RMB AR 127,437 67,829
VND WEE 4,333 7,060

718,617 645,691
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21 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BT EEREMENSRE

Accrual for operating expenses EERY ZEFIEE 33,112 21,627
Payables for purchase of property, plant BEVE BEEREZ

and equipment FERT IR 3,229 13,100
Provision for employee benefits expense EEBMZ HBE (BELLL)

(including bonus) 81,099 99,523
Estimated customer claims HETBEPRE 24,270 10,577
Provision for reinstatement costs 1R R AN 37,310 26,305
Value-added tax (“VAT") payable FEAH I (E R ([HRER]) 3,118 2,354
Contract liabilities EHEE 10,380 18,898
Others H A 10,319 17,783

202,837 210,167
Less: non-current portion: W IERBNE D
Provision for reinstatement costs B R B (37,310) (26,305)
Current portion B E 165,527 183,862
Movement of provision for reinstatement costs is as follows: BERABBEESHWNT -

As at 1 April R4818 26,305 22,934
Addition #En 9,096 2,896
Imputed interest of provision for reinstatement  {& 18 B Z< 8 & # & 7 &

costs (Note 25) (Bt 3£ 25) 1,184 1,229
Currency translation differences SN E R 725 (754)
As at 31 March M3 A31H 37,310 26,305
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21 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d) 21 BEETEE REMENSRE (&)
Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following currencies: JEEHIE B R EMEMARIBRATEES]
B :

HKS BT 72,556 77,559
RMB AR 81,492 95,025
uss EV 8,136 7,553
Others Hib 40,653 30,030
202,837 210,167

22 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 22 HhW AR EME (FE)-F8

Other income: HA
Sale of scrap materials & BE R 34,706 40,609
Sub-contracting income 2 BERA 3,208 1,889
Handling income BREA 991 3,355
Rental income e A 3,216 4,046
Government grants BT #85 Bh 20,884 85,127
Sundry income MIBUA 62,988 69,682
125,993 204,708
Other gains/(losses) — net: Hipuezs, (B518) —F58
Derivative financial instruments — forward MESBIAE-ERHINEESL
foreign currency contracts 14,921 (23,063)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of right-of-use assets HECHAREERDE BER
and property, plant and equipment (Note (i) Rtz Wz (ER) (MEsEa) 97,654 (8,041)
Net foreign exchange losses HNEE B 18 S B (45,322) (26,863)
67,253 (57,967)
193,246 146,741
Note (i): During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group disposed of two properties MEEGQ : BE2021F3A31BLEFE &K
and a carpark in Hong Kong and recognised gain on disposal of approximately SELEUREBNMEBEYER
HK$100,460,000 (2020: Nil). —fEAEES R EFERAKS

#9100,460,000 7T (20204 : &) ©
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23 EXPENSES BY NATURE 23 REEAIHNREX

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 + BB MR EITE 175,070 153,656
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 5,356 4,343
Cost of raw materials and consumables used {5 FR R AR BB 3 fR EE AR 2 PR 3,907,029 3,897,936
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ EERAMEZ (BEESMHE)

emoluments) (Note 24) (M 5E24) 644,713 641,216
Operating lease payments in respect of land and 38 R AEF 4 & T4 7K 8

buildings 121 1,648
(Reversal of provision)/provision for slow-moving 7§85 MREF & (BEREE),/

and obsolete inventories, net BEFRE (17,607) 18,574
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B A 7 B

— Audit services —EBZR% 2,906 2,906

— Non-audit services —EEZRI 248 225
Others Hh 65,968 85,018
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling HERK DIERHEER T BRE

expenses and general and administrative R RITERAX

expenses 4,783,804 4,805,522

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) 24 EERAFX(BRESHE)

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances IE - %% e 2 565,646 557,847

Retirement benefit — defined contribution RORE R — E BB H G B (5T @)
schemes (Note (a)) 41,136 42,164
Welfare and benefits B & F & 37,347 40,031
Share-based compensation expense ARG D B AT 2 Bil€ S i 584 1,174
644,713 641,216
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(Cont'd)
(a) Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes

The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC. The
Group contributes to the scheme at a fixed percentage of the basic salaries
of the subsidiary’s employees, subject to a cap, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond its
contributions. The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HKS$1,500 per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiary in Vietnam contributes to state-sponsored
employees’ social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group
contributes to the scheme at 18% of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s
employees, subject to a cap. The state-sponsored social insurance scheme is
responsible for the pension obligations payable to retired employees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 24 EEEIFX (BEEEML) (&)
(Cont’d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEREFALT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for HZE221F3A3BILFE A&E
the year ended 31 March 2021 include 3 directors (2020: 4 directors), whose Z5EEmBATEEIRES (2020
emoluments are disclosed in Note 34. The aggregate emolument payable to FA4REE) BEZHERHFE
the remaining two individuals (2020: The aggregate emolument payable to MAEE N TMBEAT IS
the remaining individual) is as follow: F(20205F - BRI TALZEIS A
BE)WT :

Salaries and allowances e MOERL 6,036 3,686
Discretionary bonuses BB IE4L 2,729 522
Retirement benefit BRIKER
— defined contribution schemes — R HEHEE - -
8,765 4,208
The number of non-directors with emoluments fell within the following IFEFALTZEIEETHEEZ A
bands: 2
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 % 7T 2 4,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 % 7T 2 5,000,000 7 7T 1 -
2 1
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24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 24 EEEIFX (BEEEML) (&)

(Cont’d)

(c) Senior management remuneration by band (c) EREEEFHFMEE
The number of senior management with emoluments fell within the following SREEEASEMesEENT
bands:
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 & 7T £ 1,000,000 7 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T 2 2,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 78 JT £ 2,500,000 78 JT 2 3
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 JT £ 3,000,000 7% 7T 2 1
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7% JT £ 3,500,000 78 7T - 2
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7% JT % 4,000,000 78 7T 2 -
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T 2 4,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7% 7T 2 5,000,000 7 7T 1 -

1 1
25 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 25 BB A REAE

Finance income: B A
- Bank interest income —RITFEWA 5,297 12,172
- Net foreign exchange gain on bank loans —IRITERMER K FE - 5,654
— Net foreign exchange gain on cash and —“HekReFHEEED
cash equivalents PE 5 U 5 F 58 18,050 7,609
23,347 25,435
Finance costs: B IS BN
— Interest expense on bank loans —IRITERFEFEX (10,368) (10,137)
— Net foreign exchange loss on bank loans —RITERWEREIEFE (1,470) -
— Interest expenses arising from lease liabilities —HEBBELNFMEMX (1,550) (69)
- Imputed interest of provision for
reinstatement cost —(BIER A EETER S (1,184) (1,229)
(14,572) (11,435)
Net finance income B A FEE 8,775 14,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Hong
Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC enterprise income tax has been
provided for at the rate of 25% (2020: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Vietnam enterprise income tax has been provided for at the rate of
20% (2020: 20%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Macau enterprise
income tax has been provided for at the rate of 12% on the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

The Group's subsidiary in Vietnam is entitled to tax holiday and the profits are fully
exempted from Vietnam enterprise income tax for two years starting from its first
year of profitable operations, which is the financial year ended 31 March 2017,
after offsetting prior year tax losses, followed by 50% reduction in CIT in next four
years.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents:

FENHRRME (R)

26 FIEHAX

NEBEMBNES - PERBREFIER
EBEFEH B FE NG ERBUSEFIZ
16.5% (2020 4F 1 16.5%) 2 Bt A H B -
REEEBETBLE ARG EREOR
F4%2 25% (2020 4F © 25% ) 2 Bt =& 1 B
%o MESEMEH R FE AT ER
it Fl 32 20% (2020 4 1 20% ) 2 FLRA(EH
B RPINEMBR IR ENIGE
SRR I 120% 2 B R AE H B o

REERABEORBEARZARTE -
IS F—FEMBEEER  AEEE
FEE (MBRE2017F38318 IEF K
FIE)RETMF RmF e BAMNEE
DEMRBHR MZENFZAE50%E
FriS &L & o

REEABRRINBZAMEHEER

Current income tax BVERFR 15 B
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBFEH 53,949 43,380
— Overseas income tax — BN 36,076 68,244
Deferred tax (Note 19) RERIE (55 19) 13,001 9,185
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBERE = (17,811)
103,026 102,998
EXHBERERAT | 202072021 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits

of the consolidated entities as follows:

FENHRRME (R)

26 FIBEH A ()
BASR B P AS B A A 2 TR iR E A
REAEREMNZ METFHREFELZ
BREHRIERNT

Profit before income tax Fr 45 %54 Al & A 838,365 870,927
Less: Vo
Associates results reported net of tax BERRZEHRER(TEH) (40,647) (37,340)
797,718 833,587
Tax calculated at weighted average domestic REAR AR RDEEE 2 N
tax rate applicable to profits in respective T SR EFE 2 IR
jurisdictions 144,520 132,594
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (27,534) (11,625)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes R 2,346 4,973
Tax concession B E=s (23,182) (17,218)
Tax on certain undistributed retained profitof ~ B A F K& QA A1HE T ADIK
a subsidiary and associates R Az BB 6,876 12,085
Over-provision in prior years Mt FE B - (17,811)
103,026 102,998

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 18.1% (2020: 15.9%). The change in
weighted average applicable tax rate is due to a change in the profitability of the

Group's subsidiaries in the respective countries.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

2020/ 2021 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in

issue, excluding treasury shares, during the year.

FENHRRME (R)

27 BREF
(a) EF
FRERNZFZAQTERITE AR
1675 F bR FF 0 B BT RR (9 I 19 2K
(TEEEGFR®)FE -

Profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company

ARRERFE ARG

Weighted average number of shares in issue
(thousands)

BT R I 2 (TR

Basic earnings per share (HKS per share)

721,491 743,489
1,411,218 1,443,679
Bt) 0.51 0.51

(b) Diluted

-

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share options to employees for

years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021.

Since the average market price of the Company’s shares during the year is less
than the assumed exercise price of the share options, the potential ordinary
shares were not included in the calculation of the diluted earnings per share
as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted earnings per
share for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021 is the same as basic

earnings per share of the respective year.

(b) #58
SREERFINRE LG BT
EEBERMAEDRITL AR I
AT E o RE E2020F & 2021
F3IAJNBUEFERATBMAES %
TH AR 4 -

ARARB RGO RFEANNFEmE
ERERERRITEE BUiTES
% 58 2 R I m AT A B e Y
B AAFAZERDSER RS
SE o ftE B 2020 K 20213 A
STELEFENSRESRFEERER
FENSREARMNMER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

28 DIVIDENDS 28 BRE

Interim dividend paid of HK22 cents BIRABEE 221l 2 BiA% 8
(2020: HK26 cents) (Note (1)) (20204 : ¥ 264L) (BT EE()) 310,466 375,525
Proposed final dividend of HK22 cents FOR A A 2200 2 REARR B
(2020: HK18 cents) (Note (ii)) (20205 = ¥ 1841l) (B 3 (1)) 310,466 254,017
620,932 629,542
Notes: B
(i) On 19 November 2020, the Company's Board of Directors declared an interim () M2020FE11 198 ARRIEERT
dividend of HK22 cents per share (2020: HK26 cents) for the six-month period K B ZE 202059 A30 8 L7518 A B3
ended 30 September 2020. The amount was paid in December 2020. A EA AR BB ARB M 224l (2020 FF « B
261Il1) <RZFFRIBER 2020F 12 A5 AT -
(i) On 24 June 2021, the Company's Board of Directors proposed a final dividend (i) R2021F6A24H  ARREFERER
of HK22 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2021. This proposed EIREE2021F3A31BIEFERE
dividend has not been reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated financial B B GRS 22l - BUR AR B0 R
statements as at 31 March 2021. 202143 A 31 BWEEE MR A iR

REMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

FENHRRME (R)

29 RERERBERMEE
(@ BEEEZHE

Profit before income tax FiT 45 B¢ A& 7 838,365 870,927
Adjustments for: LA &I 2R
Share of profits of associates Pak iy AW/NG i | (40,647) (37,340)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% « B E LR EITE 175,070 153,656
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 5,356 4,343
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEREEZ
equipment (Wez),/E5i8 (97,654) 8,041
Share-based compensation expense ARG D BERE 2 € = 1B 584 1174
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment) of JE WS BR SRR E & 18
trade receivables CRERE) 5,396 (2,172)
Net fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financial T4 €@ T A A RE
instruments (=) EBEFE (14,921) 23,063
Finance income IS (23,347) (25,435)
Finance costs B B AR 14,572 11,435
Operating profit before working capital changes & & & & & 8 pij 2 & & & 7 862,774 1,007,692
Increase in inventories FEEm (89,633) (186,439)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FE AR 51 R SRR 38 N (126,954) (3,940)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments e BNREBEREA
and other receivables JE W R IE R A (35 n) 2,533 (2,943)
Decrease in amounts due from associates P U5 B & 1) R SR IE R 16,937 23,257
Change in derivative financial instruments MESBIAEE (4,228) (7,955)
Increase in trade and bills payables FERTER SR R AR I8 N 72,926 77,206
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other FEETIE B K E b FE S 5RIR
payables CrA) /& hn (28,206) 41,805
Cash generated from operations EEELECZES 706,149 948,683
EXHBERERAT | 202072021 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBRRMT ()

29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment comprise:

29 RERERERME (F)
(b) RGERERERA - HEXRAEE
ERVE BERRXEMSREL
F

Net book amount of property, plant and

ME - WEEREBREFE

equipment 5,204 10,559
Net book amount of right-of-use assets EREAEERTFE 1,473 -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of right-of-use assets PEFAREERYE  BER

and property, plant and equipment sz (BE) 97,654 (8,041)
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets PEFEAREERYE  BEK

and property, plant and equipment RIBFTIS IR 104,331 2,518
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d) 29 ZREBEREBRMZF (F)
(c) Reconciliation of net debt in financing activities (c) BMETEHEEFEHER

As at 1 April 2019 R2019%481H 146,225 300,000 1,292 447517
New bank borrowings MERITEE - 966,105 - 966,105
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE - (523,261) - (523,261)
Repayment of loan from a non-controlling B3 — B B 2 A 3EIE 1

interest of a subsidiary BRERCER (19.493) - - (19.493)
Addition of leases MIEHE - - 727 727
Accrued interest [EETF 8 - - 69 69
Payment for lease liabilities INHEAE - - (944) (944)
Exchange currency alignment [E % (1,683) (5,654) - (7,337)
As at 31 March 2020 R202053831H 125,049 737,190 1,144 863,383
As at 1 April 2020 R202054518 125,049 737,190 1,144 863,383
New bank borrowings HERTEE - 457,665 - 457,665
Repayment of bank borrowings BEETEE - (550,882) - (550,882)
Addition of leases MERE - - 91,082 91,082
Accrued interest FEETF S - - 1,550 1,550
Payment for lease liabilities INHEARE - - (52,445) (52,445)
Exchange currency alignment ERAE 326 1,470 (114) 1,682
As at 31 March 2021 R2021538318 125,375 645,443 u,217 812,035

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 AEAE
At 31 March 2021, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2020 Nil). R2021F3A31H  AEBEWES Kk

BEE (20204 : &) o

For contingent liabilities relating to associates, please refer to Note 9(a). FRBERARzHEAERFLBEN T
9(a) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

31 COMMITMENTS 31 &E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet REFERBETHEMAREEZBARH
incurred is as follows: ST

Contracted but not provided for: BETHE KRB -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BWERRE 171,668 130,913
Leasehold land and land use rights FAE £ b [+ s fsF PR AE - 75,513
171,668 206,426
At 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any significant share of capital R2021F3 8318 AEB L ESD
commitments of its associates (2020: Nil). fH 5 & R R EARE AN (2020
Fom|m) o
(b) Lease commitments - Group as lessor (b) HARE-FEBELSHBAA
The future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable R AR S AT RS A5 2 R 40 FE IR A R 2R B
operating leases are as follows: BEHESHELBOT -

As lessor: EREMEA
Not later than 1 year T F 322 743
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years HBiE1FENERSF 198 35

520 778
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly control or
exert significant influence over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

The directors are of the view that the following entities were related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group during the year.

FEMBRRNE (F)

32 BEEEALTRS

BREANTIRAREDES - B A 6w
REDSHEMAHRKETTEEN
MATITERERTENNAL  AAE
HEFEEEL2ERRET MG EE R
B R S M RO A £ R AT A A B4R
BRETNENZEREZELDRESEDOA
T o XA S E R B AL TR
BREBE - AREALTAREASE
fhEEE

§$w% THEEBRFAEEAKE
ETRXHIBEEREHRIBREAL -

Toray Industries, Inc.

REBH®RASH TERR

Teejay Lanka PLC
Teejay Lanka PLC

An associate

N

SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. An associate

ETER(EM) TEHBERBRAA LA NS

A substantial shareholder

Source Smart Asia Ltd

HEEMERAE

A company controlled by son of a director

EERTENZAA

EXGHBERERLA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

32 BEREALRS (M)
(a) HEBAEALTETZRZNT :

HERBRRME (F)

2021 2020
20216 20204
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FH&T
Sales of goods HEEm
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (ii)) —RBHRA 2 (M) 34,719 47,252
Purchase of materials BE MR
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (i) —REBRRA S (M) 128,780 153,510
Rental income HEeWA
- Source Smart Asia Ltd (Note (iii)) — =N A R R (K EE i) - 990
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (jii)) —ETEXR(EM) REL
= mA R A E (B EE i) 2,860 2,827
2,860 3,817
Sub-contracting income 2EBA
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (ii)) —EIE KX (BM) TB 55
B R &) (B 5E (i) 3,200 1,784
Handling income BEWA
— Teejay Lanka PLC (Note (iv)) —Teejay Lanka PLC (Bt & (iv)) 875 3,292
Commission paid for services REBEAXAREE
- Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (v)) —REKRASH (W) 5 -
Royalty fee BB
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (v)) — BRI (WiEW) 31 -
Notes: B 5
(i) Goods are purchased at prices mutually agreed by the Group and the () EmBEEDER %%i@$§¢$§$
substantial shareholder in the ordinary course of business. SEREZRRARBE BIERE
13-
(i) Goods are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices mutually (i) E%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁ@ HEXED
agreed by the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of business. BREPIRASE AT HA
WE 2 BISHETT
(iii) Rental income is determined based on the size of the property and the ERWEEEEERT

relevant market rate.

(iv

Handling fee received from an associate is charged at 2% to 3% of the value

of certain purchases made as an agent of the associate, and the rates of the
handling fee were mutually agreed by both parties.

(v) Commission and royalty fee are paid at prices mutually agreed by the Group
and the substantial shareholder in the ordinary course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 32 BEREAELRS (F)
(b) Year-end balances (b) FRAEER

Amount due from SPM Automotive Textiles FEWETIE R (EMN) TEHH

Co. Ltd. for sub-contracting income and ERMBRABDBERAK

rental income HE WA 891 560
Trade in nature: Z5MH
Amount due from Teejay Lanka PLC arising from BERABEERES ZEK

purchase of goods on behalf Teejay Lanka PLC k18 11,714 28,982
Amount due from Toray Industries, Inc. arising ~ EAHEEEME £ 2 I

from sales of goods on behalf REHRA S HE 1,531 3,308

13,245 32,290

Trade in nature: E5ME
Amount due to Toray Industries, Inc. arising from BB MR E L 2 B HERR

purchase of materials 21 A 43,763 33,522

(c) Key management compensation (c) TEEEBEAEMHS

Salaries, bonus and allowances Frd o B4 KRR 68,809 61,023

Retirement benefits — defined contribution R — E R ARG E
schemes 126 132
68,935 61,155
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 33 ANAIEEERBRRBEEZED
Balance sheet of the Company ARARAEEEER

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LN $e 1,478,297 1,421,249
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 1,577,898 6,277,205
Cash and bank balances [ e MIRTT 19,824 13,652
1,597,722 6,290,857
Total assets EEHAE 3,076,019 7,712,106
EQUITY R
Share capital A& A 1,411 1,435
Share premium & 10 &= 8 1,303,246 1,398,998
Treasury shares EFRG - (88,037)
Reserves & 841,604 1,008,208
2,146,261 2,320,604
LIABILITIES 8&
Current liabilities nREEE
Borrowings BE 296,702 295,931
Accruals and other payables FESHIE B K E < 5KIE 4,582 3,945
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE I B A R 5RIB 628,474 5,091,626
929,758 5,391,502
Total liabilities BEHAE 929,758 5,391,502
Total equity and liabilities ERREERE 3,076,019 7,712,106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Contd) BEMBRRM (F)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
Reserve movement of the Company

33 ARRAEERERRHEEZLSS (B)
RATREZEY

At 1 April 2019 R2019%481H 14,527 1,270,976 - 1,285,503
Profit for the year B3l - 458,662 - 458662
Share-based compensation expense DR BER 2B E = H 1,174 - - 1174
Lapse of share options BRELN (2,146) 2,146 - -
Repurchase of shares BERGH - (mn 11 -
2018/2019 final dividends 2018/2019F R AR B - (361,606) - (361,606)
2019/2020 interim dividends 2019/2020 F R H iR & - (375,525) - (375,525)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31H 13,555 994,642 1 1,008,208
Representing: RR:
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) A HRE (fFEs) 254,017
Others Hit 740,625
994,642
At 1 April 2020 R20205481A8 13,555 994,642 11 1,008,208
Profit for the year FEEF - 397,295 - 397,295
Share-based compensation expense R BER ez 584 - - 584
Repurchase of shares BEE kKR - (24) 24 =
2019/2020 final dividends 2019/2020F R B MR B - (254,017) - (254,017)
2020/2021 interim dividends 2020/2021 R AR B = (310,466) - (310,466)
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 14,139 827,430 35 841,604
Representing: EONE
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) HEaARBRa (M) 310,466
Others Hith 516,964
827,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Company
by the Group are as follows:

FENHRRME (R)

34 BEERBSTHRAEZHS
BEERRETHRAEZHS
AEBEERN BNARREZ MR
BT

Fees we 5,250 5,167
Salaries, bonus and allowances Fre o B4 KRR 31,365 31,478
Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes 3R K& | — F 28 1t Tt 2l 18 18

36,633 36,663

The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

HE2001F3A3BLEE &EFE2
e

Executive directors HITES

Wan Wai Loi (Chief executive officer) FER (ITHEAE) 1,500 21,673 = 23,173

Masaru Okutomi BEB 1,000 3,308 - 4,308

Tou Kit Vai M4 1,000 4,013 18 5,031

Toshiya Ishii AHFER 1,000 2,371 = 3,371

Non-executive director FHITES

Lau Yiu Tong ZIR=x - - - -

Independent non-executive directors B FHITESE

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael PR 8 250 - - 250

Ng Ching Wah hBE 250 = - 250

Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel it =7 250 - - 250
5,250 31,365 18 36,633
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd)

The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

FENHRRME (R)

3 EERBEETHRAEZHME (&)
EERBETBRAEZHS (F)
HE20F3831BLLFE SEBE2
BT -

Executive directors HTES

Wan Wai Loi (Chief executive officer) FER (TTBAEE) 1,500 21,821 - 23,321

Masaru Okutomi RBEB 750 2,040 - 2,790

Tou Kit Vai it A5 R 1,000 3,912 18 4,930

Toshiya Ishii BB 1,000 2,130 - 3,130

Non-executive director (note) FETES ()

Lau Yiu Tong 2= 167 1,575 - 1,742

Independent non-executive directors B I FEHITES

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael B8 250 - - 250

Ng Ching Wah hiB%E 250 - - 250

Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel e B &8 250 - - 250
5,167 31,478 18 36,663

Note: Upon being redesignated to NED on 1 June 2019, Mr. Lau has since then waived MaE : R2019F 6 A1 BRATAEENITES

any emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2020. Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a former
NED, resigned with effect from 12 June 2019 had waived emoluments during the

year ended 31 March 2020.

B R EBNEREHE2020F
SANBLFEZME - BIEIEHR
TEEEFEPLE (R2019F6 A12
AEfE) EMEHZ202096F3 A3
AIEFEZHME -
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS Ge¥E

Revenue W A 5,384,897 5,476,196 6,119,081 6,098,153 5,993,632

Gross profit EF 861,689 924,578 1,060,901 947,162 1,116,484

Profit attributable to: THATEMERF

Equity holders of the Company A AIEZEFHAE A 721,491 743,489 861,780 744,035 975,573

Non-controlling interests FE 1 Il 1 = 13,848 24,440 8,479 (20,693) 13,655
735,339 767,929 870,259 723,342 989,228

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GREEBEXR

Non-current assets EMEBEE 2,068,692 1,912,357 2,001,296 2,046,372 1,889,201
Current assets MEBEE 3,142,672 2,900,817 2,528,941 2,806,338 3,122,567
Total assets EERE 5,211,364 4,813,174 4,530,237 4,852,710 5,011,768
Current liabilities mBBE 1,624,654 1,613,402 1,051,550 1,311,037 1,660,479

Total assets less current liabilities & E 2B T8 & & 3,586,710 3,199,772 3,478,687 3,541,673 3,351,289

Non-current liabilities FnBEE 233,085 202,716 209,048 200,811 170,841

Total equity iR 3,353,625 2,977,056 3,269,639 3,340,862 3,180,448

Net current assets mENEEFE 1,518,018 1,287,415 1,477,391 1,495,301 1,462,088

Equity attributable to: TH AT

Equity holders of the Company AR FIHEREHHE A 3,337,921 2,985,924 3,279,611 3,357,578 3,177,168

Non-controlling interests FE 2 i 15,704 11,132 (9,972) (16,716) 3,280
3,353,625 2,997,056 3,269,639 3,340,862 3,180,448
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GLOSSARY
SHAR

In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor's Report and Financial

Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall

have the following meanings:

“2021 Financial Year”

AGM”

“Articles”

“Board”

"CG Code”" or "Corporate
Governance Code”

“China”or “PRC"

"Company”

“Director(s)”

"Group”

"HKD" or “$" or "HKS"

"HKSAR" or "Hong Kong”

"INED(s)"

"Listing Rules” or “Main Board
Listing Rules”

"L KR" or “RS”"

“Model Code”

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Articles of Association of the Company, as
amended from time to time

The Board of Directors of the Company

The Corporate Governance Code, stated in the
Appendix 14 to the Main Board Listing Rules

The People’s Republic of China

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange

The Director(s) of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Dollar

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

The Independent Non-executive Director(s) of the
Company

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, as amended from time to
time

Sri Lankan Rupee
Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the
Main Board Listing Rules
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GLOSSARY
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"Panyu Plant” the factory run by Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited [ % & & RABEEMTELEEAXN
located in Nansha of Guangzhou City, the PRC (BB HBHEERATE

BT

“RMB” or “CNY” “Renminbi/Chinese Yuan" [ARE] AR

"SFO" Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of  [EHREBEKRG] FHLBEEH (FEEH
the laws of Hong Kong) E5NE)

“Shares” Shares of the Company, with a nominal value of  [&7 ] KRB GREE0ETT
HK$0.001 each Z Bt

“Shareholder(s)” The Company's Shareholder(s) &l RAAZIRE

“Share Option Scheme” The Share Option Scheme adopted by the  [EE#E:TE] AR AR B R R 2007 F 4
Company pursuant to the written resolutions of AyHBBZEEBARAER
Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, and expired Rine Bk - AER
on 17 May 2017 20175 17 BIER

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [ 2 ) BEREBMARSHMARATF

"Teejay Lanka PLC"

“Toray”

“UsSD" or “USs”

“VND"
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Teejay Lanka PLC (formerly known as Textured
Jersey Lanka PLC and Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka and
whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange of Sri Lanka

Toray Industries, Inc., a company incorporated
under the laws of Japan and whose shares are
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange in Japan, a
substantial Shareholder of the Company

United States Dollar

Vietnamese Dong

2020/ 2021 Annual Report
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PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
EAHBERBERAF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RESREEMEL Z2ERAR])
(Stock Code BR13X55% : 01382)
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